ANNUAL REPORT
2010 E

AprprLIED DeveLoPMENT HoLDINGS LTD.
BNEEXERFRAT

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
(RBEREAMALZ2ER DA
Stock Code RipH 5 : 519




Corporate Information
NAER
Chairman’s Statement
TREHRE

Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EZNEEEEABRERE
Directors’ Report
Exewsd

Corporate Governance Report
PEERWMES
Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZBMHmEE

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

e rEWER

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e B R

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEEREEER

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
FERERER

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e M E N

Financial Summary

B E

Particulars of Major Properties

E2YMEFE

12

20

29

32

33

35

37

39

106

107



Corporate Information
NGIE= VS

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors:

Hung Kin Sang, Raymond (Managing Director)
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Fang Chin Ping (retired on 24 November 2009)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Lun Tsan Kau

Lam Ka Wai, Graham

Su Ru Jia (appointed on 24 February 2010)
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

Following the recovery of the global economy and the
property market in Hong Kong, we have recorded a profit
of approximately HK$47,573,000 as compared to a loss
of HK$11,810,000 for the corresponding period last
year. The profit of approximately HK$47,573,000 was
attributed mainly to an increase in the revaluation surplus
on Hong Kong investment properties. The Group has also
reclassified the Panama Project as an investment property
and this resulted in a revaluation profit of approximately
HK$16,564,000 (after a write-off of an accumulated
total of pre development expenses approximately
HK$15,100,000). We expect the property market both
globally and in Hong Kong to remain strong in the
forthcoming financial year.

On 9 June 2010, we agreed to an extension of the
expiry dates of the Initial Land and Development Loan,
Quorum Note and the Deferred Purchase Price to 9 April
2011 as requested by our joint venture partner, Interlsle,
who needed more time to obtain the Initial Land and
Development Loan after a settlement of the current
challenge of the BVI Project and the submission of the
revised master plan of the golf course on 11 June 2010 in
satisfaction of the requirements of the relevant authorities
in the BVI. We believe that this is in the best interests
of, and will be most beneficial to the shareholders of the
Company and the Group as our joint venture partner,
Interlsle, is very experienced in property development in
the Caribbean Region.

As a result of the continuous boom of the high-end
property market in Hong Kong, the Group has been
approached to sell the Group’s precious investment
properties — the Severn Villa properties. We believe that if
the Group’s Severn Villa properties could be sold at its re-
development value which is higher than its valuation as at
30 June 2010, it would produce satisfactory profits to the
Group.

We also believe that the Group’s investment properties
and overseas projects will bring in satisfactory returns.

RESULTS

The Group’s consolidated profit for the year ended 30
June 2010 amounted to approximately HK$47,573,000
as compared with the loss of HK$11,810,000 for the
corresponding year. Such profit is mainly due to an
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increase in revaluation surplus on the Group’s investment
properties for the financial year ended 30 June 2010 as
compared to the financial year ended 30 June 2009.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 30 June 2010, the carrying values of investment
properties pledged by the Group to secure banking
facilities granted to the Group amounted to
HK$220,000,000 (2009: HK$170,000,000).

BUSINESS REVIEW
(i) Resort and Property Development
BVI Project

In August 2006, the Group entered into an
agreement (the "JV Agreement”) for the
formation of a joint venture with Interlsle Holdings
Ltd. (“Interlsle”) to develop the BVI Project of
approximately 660 acres (approximately 267
hectares or 28.75 million square feet). On 9
June 2010, the Group further entered the Fifth
Memorandum of Amendments to the Agreements
dated 9 April 2010 with Interlsle. Pursuant to
the Fifth Memorandum of Amendments to the
Agreement, all parties agreed to further extend
the expiry dates of (i) the date of the Initial Land
and Development Loan to be arranged by Interlsle
with a reputable commercial bank or financial
institution and, (ii) the Quorum Note and (iii) the
Deferred Purchase Price, being changed to 9 April
2011 as requested by Interlsle who needed more
time to arrange the Initial Land and Development
Loan after the settlement of the current challenge
of the BVI project and submission of the revised
master plan of the golf course on 11 June 2010
in satisfaction of the requirements of relevant
authorities in the BVI. The Management believes
that our JV partner, Interlsle will use its best efforts
to obtain finances to comply with its payment
obligations under (i) the Quorum Note and (ii) the
Deferred Purchase Price.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

The BVI Project is envisioned to be a master-planned
resort community which will include: a five-star
luxury resort hotel with approximately 200 hotel
and condo-hotel units, destination spa, signature
restaurant and conference rooms; a first-class
marina with approximately 135 ships, including
facilities for 15 mega-yachts of over 80 feet; and
a golf course and up to 600 high-end residential
units including townhomes, beachfront residences,
ocean-view villas, and secluded mountain estate
homes; as well a unique artisan and retail village at
Trellis Bay.

Panama Project

The Panama Project comprises two pieces of land:
(i) a piece of land of approximately 494 hectares
(approximately 1,223 acres or 53.27 million square
feet) named Playa Grande in Boca Chica, District of
San Lorenzo, Province of Chiriqui in Panama (the
“Panama Land”); and (ii) a hot spring with a land
size of approximately 9 hectares (approximately
22.3 acres or 0.97 million square feet) in Borough
of San Felix, Province of Chiriqui, Panama (the “Hot
Spring Property”). The Panama Project is wholly
owned by the Group and was acquired by the
Group at an aggregate cost of US$20.25 million
(approximately HK$157.95 million) in mid-2007.
After the acquisition of the Panama Project, the
Group has developed a master plan for the project,
devised golf course routing plans, conducted
market studies, environmental studies, IRR studies,
and various other studies and tests on the project.
As part of the development of the Panama Project,
the Group has signed a golf course agreement with
Jack Nicklaus in respect of the Panama Project.

The Panama Project is planned to feature a 5-star
luxury hotel, a branded boutique hotel and a
luxury condo hotel, a marina facility and a marina
village, a 18-hole signature golf course, a branded
fractional ownership club, branded ocean-view
villas and branded residential lots. After completion
of the Panama Project, 800-1,000 residential units
in the various branded residential lots will be
offered for optimum return.
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(ii)  Investment and Property Holding

The Group's investment properties, mainly in Hong
Kong, the People’s Republic of China and Panama
generated rental income of HK$4,847,000 for the
Group for the year ended 30 June 2010.

OUTLOOK

Following the recovery of the global economy and the
property market in Hong Kong, the management believes
that the Group’s investment properties in Hong Kong and
Panama and the developments in the BVI will bring in
satisfactory returns to the Group.

Based on our outlook of the resort and property sector
and investment property market, we will continue to be
strategically allied with high-quality architects, designers,
and resort developers to develop future resort projects
for development or for sale and seek other appropriate
property investment opportunities in the Asian region.

PORTAL OPERATION

The Group has established a corporate website
www.applieddev.com. The website serves as an electronic
channel to enhance relationships between the Company
and the shareholders by informing them of the most
updated corporate and investor information.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION

As at 30 June 2010, the Group’s total net asset value and
secured borrowings amounted to HK$587.7 million and
HK$57.0 million respectively, representing a gearing ratio
of 9.7% as compared to 10.9% of the corresponding
year. In addition, the majority of the Group’s assets were
in Hong Kong and US dollars, and hence the exposure to
foreign exchange were insignificant to the Group.

EXPOSURE TO EXCHANGE RATE FLUCTUATIONS

The Group does not engage in interest rate or foreign
exchange speculative activities. It is the Group’s policy to
manage foreign exchange risk through matching foreign
exchange income with expenses, and where exposure
to foreign exchange is anticipated, appropriate hedging
instrument will be used.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

As at 30 June 2010, the Group employed a total of 16
(2009: 18) full-time employees.

The Group’s emolument policies are formulated on the
basis of performance of individual employees and are
reviewed annually. The Group also provides medical
insurance coverage and provident fund scheme (as the
case may be) to its employees depending on the location
of such employees.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this
opportunity to express my heartfelt thanks to all of
the staff and business partners for their hard work and
dedication.

By order of the Board
Hung Kai Mau, Marcus

Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 August 2010
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Hung Kin Sang, Raymond, aged 61, Managing
Director, holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Electrical
Engineering from the University of Illinois and a MBA
degree from the University of Chicago, USA. He has
overall responsibility for the activities of the Company. In
April 1976, he founded the Group and has been actively
involved in the Group’s development over the last 34
years.

Mr. Hung Kai Mau, Marcus, aged 27, Chairman, holds
a Bachelor’s degree in Economics and a MBA degree
both from University of Chicago. He joined the Company
in 2005. He is principally responsible for the overall
management and business of the Group.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lun Tsan Kau, aged 55, Independent Non-executive
Director, holds a Master of Science degree in Electronics
and Computer Science from the University of California
at Berkeley, USA and a Master of Business Administration
degree from the University of Hong Kong. He joined
the Group in 1997. He has over 31 years experience
in investment, manufacturing, banking and real estate
development. He was previously affiliated with several
international banks, an electronics manufacturing
company, a US based investment holding company and a
HK public listed real estate development company.

Mr. Lam Ka Wai, Graham, aged 42, Independent Non-
executive Director, graduated from the University of
Southampton, England with a Bachelor of Science degree
in Accounting and Statistics. He is a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
a member of the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He joined the Group in 2005. He is currently
a Managing Director and a Head of Corporate Finance of
an investment bank and has around 16 years experience in
investment banking as well as around 4 years experience
in Accounting and Auditing. He is also the Independent
Non-executive Director of Cheuk Nang (Holdings) Limited
(stock code: 131), China Fortune Group Limited (stock
code: 290), ZZNode Technologies Company Limited (stock
code: 2371), China Sonangol Resources Enterprise Limited
(stock code: 1229) and Pearl Oriental Innovation Limited
(stock code: 632) and Value Convergence Holdings Ltd
(stock code:821),companies listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited; and China
Railway Logistics Limited (stock code: 8089) and Finet
Group Limited (stock code: 8317), companies listed on
The Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EXNSEEEAERE

Mr. Su Ru lJia, aged 60. Independent Non-executive
Director, holds a MBA degree from International East-
West University of America (3=E BB R /H 5 A 2) and
graduated from Nanjing Senior Army Command College§
(8 R = M BE F 5 18 2 F7) and South China Normal
University GEmIATEIKXEE) in 1983 and 1989 respectively.
He has been appointed as a Committee Member of
The Communist Party of Committee of Shenzhen§ (&
HRYITZEZE), a Committee Member of Political of
Association Shenzhen Committee§ (KipFYIMEZEESH
%) and a Deputy Director of Main Branch of Economic
Technology Committee§ (& ERIKZE B G ERNREET)
since 2007, before that, he was appointed as a Deputy
Chief of Shenzhen Trade Development Council§ (FYIE
23 EREIBE) and a Secretary of The Communist Party
of Committee of Shenzhen Unit Work Committee§ (73t
RINTEHERYEMTEZEGER) in 1998 and 2001
respectively. He has worked for the Community State of
PRC for over 41 years. During the course of working for
the military of PRC from the Deputy Squad Leader lastly
promoted to the Commander of the military, he achieved
three Third-class merit reward and was praised his
excellent performance over 20 times. He has an extensive
experience in the economic and property development of
PRC, especially management in the PRC State Committee.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. Wong Kar Gee, Mimi, aged 62, Non-executive
Director, holds a B.Sc. degree in Economics of Purdue
University, USA in 1971 and a EMBA degree of Cheung
Kong Graduate School of Business, Peking in 2005. She
is a graduate from FPEEEEBHESRESHIIEN in
2006. She has joined the Group since 1977 and also was
a former Chairman of a former listed subsidiary of our
Group. She has extensive experience in the management
and finance of the electronics industry. She had been a
Director of Tung Wah Group of Hospitals (“Tung Wah")
for a few years and is a Voting Member of Tung Wah and
a Trustee of Friend of Hong Kong Museum of Art.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

SENIOR MANAGEMENT & COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Ng Kit Ling, Tess, aged 45, Deputy Financial
Controller and also the Company Secretary. She joined
the Group in 2005. She has over 24 years experience in
finance and accounting matters of listed group companies.
She is a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
in United Kingdom and holds a Master Degree in
Accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University.

§ literal translation
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Directors’ Report
EEgHEE

The directors have a pleasure to present their annual
report and the audited consolidated financial statements
of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
The Group is principally engaged in resort and property
development; property and investment holding. The
activities of the principal subsidiaries of the Company
and a jointly controlled entity of the Group are set out in
notes 17 and 37, respectively, to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 June
2010 are set out in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income statement on page 32.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a
dividend.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The Group did not have any purchases and suppliers
during the year and at the end of the reporting period,
respectively. During the year, the aggregate revenue
attributable to the five largest customers and the largest
customer of the Group were 69% and 36% of the total
revenue of the Group, respectively.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders
of the Company which, to the knowledge of the directors,
owned more than 5% of the issued share capital of the
Company had any beneficial interest in the share capital
of any of the five largest customers of the Group.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements during the year in the investment
properties of the Group are set out in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements during the year in the property,
plant and equipment of the Group are set out in note 15
to the consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR PROPERTIES

Details of the major properties of the Group at 30 June
2010 are set out on pages 107 to 108.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the year in share capital of
the Company are set out in note 27 to the consolidated
financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus account of the Company is
available for distribution. However, the Company cannot
declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of
contributed surplus if:

(a) it is, or would after payment be, unable to pay it
liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby
be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its
issued share capital and share premium.

In the opinion of the directors, the reserves of the
Company available for distribution to shareholders as
at 30 June 2010 amounted to HK$179,505,000 (2009:
HK$195,962,000).
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EEgHEE

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to
the date of this report were:

Executive directors:
Hung Kin Sang, Raymond (Managing Director)
Hung Kai Mau, Marcus (Chairman (appointed
on 10 June 2010))
Fang Chin Ping
(retired on 24 November 2009)

Independent non-executive directors:
Lo Yun Tai
(retired on 24 November 2009)
Lun Tsan Kau
Lam Ka Wai, Graham
Su Ru Jia
(appointed on 24 February 2010)

Non-executive director:

Wong Kar Gee, Mimi
(re-designated from Chairman and executive director
to non-executive director on 10 June 2010)

In accordance with Clauses 86(2) and 87(1) of the
Company's Bye-Laws and the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices contained in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited provides, inter alia, that
Mr. Su Ru Jia, Ms. Wong Kar Gee, Mimi and Mr. Lun Tsan
Kau shall retire at the Annual General Meeting and they
will be eligible to offer themselves for re-election. All
remaining directors will continue in office. The terms of
office of the independent non-executive directors are the
periods up to their retirement by rotation in accordance
with the Company’s Bye-Laws.

The directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting do not have any
service contract in writing with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of
the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

LITIGATION WITH A NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR,
MS. WONG KAR GEE, MIMI

As at 27 August 2010, the date on which the final results
of the Company are approved by the Board, the Company
has the following litigation involving Ms. Wong Kar Gee,
Mimi (“Ms. Wong"”), a non-executive director and a
retiring director in the forthcoming AGM, as a party:

(i) On 3 August 2010, the Company commenced legal
proceedings against Ms. Wong seeking a return of
a number of antiques and artwork which are the
Company’s assets and which in the past have been
placed in the custody of Ms. Wong and which she
has not returned to the Company.

(i) On 24 August 2010, Ms. Wong commenced legal
proceedings against Mr. Hung Kin Sang, Raymond
and the Company seeking, among other things, to
inspect certain books of accounts, statutory records
and documents of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

At 30 June 2010, the interests and short positions of
the directors of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")), as recorded
in the register of members required to be kept by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO or otherwise
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”) contained in
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), were as follows:

Applied Development Holdings Limited B hiZ %&£ MAR A 7 » Annual Report 2010 43}

Directors’ Report
EFERSE

EENERENz2ERE

RF B F AEMGRE - RARREAE
MM BARBE L AR 2EENE
TEEERIEZREARECERALN -

BIHNTESEIRHLL ZHFHR

R-ZB-ZBENA-++H HAES
ERARAAAGNBEEZAE - XAF]
BIFRELL ([TLL]) (KRARIZ3E
WMITEE) REBRREHEFREKR
LRENRES ZFANT ¢

i) MN-E-THA=E A7
ERERTRAZRTHESEN
RAIZEE-—ATHEREN
mn e ZARAZEEBEHBRT
LEIEE - AMEXLIHABRE
AARBIEE e

(i M-FBE-—FBFNA-THEHBE - F£
LB REZESEERARAR
FZRITH SR (EPERHE
) EBEARRFZHRE ~ JAER
B XXt e

EEZROREBRRNER

R-_EB-—FTFRNA=1+H BERF
RIBES LB ERA (5 RPE K
B11) E3521GFE 2R BB M -
ARBEEHBARAREBBEE
(EERES KB HROIEXVED) KX
7 HERN RESF2BERAR -
REBBBMAXZMARAR (RS
Prl) @ EWmARA (T EWARA) s
EHRRERETESFRXFNFEESTRI
(MEEFA ) BAHEARRFRR 5
ZHEmIT

15



Directors’ Report
EEgHEE

Long position in shares of the Company

RRBARDEFRER

Number of ordinary shares

ERRKRHE
Held by Approximate
Beneficial controlled % of

Name of directors owner corporation Total shareholding

S BARR
EEnE BREEA AEFE st BatE
Hung Kin Sang, Raymond 333,912,701 75,022,883 408,935,584 48.75%
HEAs (Note 1)

(F3E1)
Wong Kar Gee, Mimi 9,310,056 - 9,310,056 1.11%
ExRH (Note 2)

(BfFEE2)

Hung Kai Mau, Marcus 2,960,000 - 2,960,000 0.35%
U
Fang Chin Ping 100,000 - 100,000 0.01%
T
(retired on 24 November 2009)
(R=ZZEZNF+—AZTHEARTE)
Notes: BsE -
(1) These shares were held by the following companies: (1) ZERMBTIRRREE :

Malcolm Trading Inc.
Jaytime Overseas Ltd.

Malcolm Trading Inc. and Jaytime Overseas Ltd. are wholly
owned and controlled by Mr. Hung Kin Sang, Raymond.

(2) Ms. Wong Kar Gee, Mimi (“Ms. Wong"”) has represented
to the Company that she has an interest in shares of the
Company of a total of 405,655,584 shares. This is on the
basis that 405,655,584 shares in the Company are said
by Ms. Wong to be held in trust by a family trust with
her as one of the beneficiaries. Ms. Wong’s claim is not
reflected in the register of members of the Company and
is disputed by Mr. Hung Kin Sang, Raymond.

Number of
ordinary shares

EEREE

44,362,883
30,660,000

75,022,883

Malcolm Trading Inc.MJaytime Overseas

Ltd R A S FTRE A SR IE -

(2) IxR#r+ ([Ext]) ERAEXRFRR
3% B AR X B 55 48 5 /405,655,584
B% o THIR¥E £ L B 7% 405,655,584%
AARRMDBERERTER AETRE
XNFEMABER —UZEA - TLE
ZEBBELIHNARBEARDHREE
AR E G R EE AT -

6 Applied Development Holdings Limited & h 2 ¥ % ®AMR 2 7 ¢ Annual Report 2010 43§



Save as disclosed above and other than certain nominee
shares in subsidiaries held in trust for the Company by
certain directors at 30 June 2010, none of the directors,
chief executive or their associates had any interests or
short positions in any shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

The directors and employees of the Company and its
subsidiaries are entitled to participate in the share option
scheme of the Company adopted by the Company
on 16 September 2002 (the “Scheme”).
the Scheme are set out in note 28 to the consolidated

Particulars of
financial statements.
The following table discloses movements of the share

options of the Company granted to the Directors during
the year:

Directors’ Report
EEgHES

B EXFIEEMETESUERTR
RAEEFERHBE AR ZETRIEA
O RZFB—FFXA=1THE " &
B THAERIESZBEALTTE
A AR B S E TR A B I () S 4E
RN KEF I ERIARBRE °

BERORESFZH

ARAREMBARIZESERESY
A2EARARTRZTZT_FNLATA
AR R AR RBAE S (5
gl)) - FrEZFBERERGEA M BREM
it28 e

AR - BT AAREEL AFBR
EEBHIT ;

Lapsed or
Outstanding Granted Exercised cancelled
Date of share  at beginning during during during Outstanding Exercise
Name of directors options granted  of the year the year the year the year at30.6.2010  price
R-B-2f
BRE EEERRZ FECRE KRA=1H
B4l BTEH BRESH FEfM EEfE HIERE KMIE TEE
HKS
BT
Hung Kin Sang, Raymond 21 October 2009 - 22,700,000 - - 22,700,000  0.29
s Lo ZETNE
+A=t+-A8
Wong Kar Gee, Mimi 21 October 2009 - 13,330,000 - - 13,330,000 0.29
TxH —ZENE
TA-t-H
Hung Kai Mau, Marcus 21 October 2009 - 8,400,000 - - 8,400,000 0.29
HER —ZENE
TA-t-H
Total for directors - 44,430,000 - - 44,430,000

BYTES
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EEgHEE

Notes:

(1) The exercise period of the share options of the Company
granted to all above directors is five years from the date
of grant and there is no minimum vesting period for the
share options of the Company.

(2) The closing price of the shares of the Company
immediately before the date of grant of share options is
HK$0.29.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate. None of the
Directors or their spouses or children under the age of 18
had any right to subscribe for securities of the Company
or had exercised any such rights during the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

Other than the interests disclosed above under the
heading “Directors’ interests in shares, underlying shares
and debentures” in respect of certain directors, the
register of substantial shareholders maintained by the
Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO discloses no
person as having a notifiable interests or short positions in
the issued share capital of the Company at 30 June 2010.

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive directors, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to the guidelines set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of
the independent non-executive directors are independent.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

On 12 February 2010, the Company cancelled 34,329,000
shares (the “cancellation”) in the Company held by its
wholly-owned subsidiary, Applied Investment (Asia) Limited
and its issued share capital was reduced to 838,888,826
shares after the cancellation.

e
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Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries had purchased, sold, or redeemed any of
the listed securities of the Company during the year.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other
donations of HK$824,448.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-Laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-
rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float
throughout the year ended 30 June 2010.

AUDITOR

Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu resigned as auditor of
the Company with effect from 20 May 2008 and Mazars
CPA Limited were appointed as auditor of the Company
on 20 May 2008 to fill the casual vacancy so arising. There
have been no other changes of auditor in the past three
years.

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company to re-appoint Mazars

CPA Limited as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Hung Kai Mau, Marcus
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 August 2010
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The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) is
pleased to present the Corporate Governance Report for
the year ended 30 June 2010.

We have pleasure that Mr. Su Ru Jia joined the Board with
effect from 24 February 2010. He has extensive experience
in the management and operation of PRC businesses.

The Company has complied with the provisions (“Code
Provisions”) in the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (“CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Rules (“Listing Rules”) Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”) throughout the year. After specific enquiries
of each of the Directors, the Directors confirm that they
have complied with the standards set out in the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”), contained in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules.

The Company has always committed to good corporate
governance principles and practices to safeguard the
interests of its shareholders and uphold accountability,
transparency and responsibility of the Company.

The Company reqgularly reviews its corporate governance
practices to ensure that the Company continues to meet
the requirements of the CG Code.
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TREAMES
THE BOARD EEg
(i)  Board Composition (i) E=gHKE
Executive Directors HiTEH
1. Mr. Hung Kin Sang, Raymond 1. HEAE LA
(Managing Director and father of (B FAATTE [ HHE
Mr. Hung Kai Mau, Marcus) FEEZKEE)
2. Mr. Hung Kai Mau, Marcus 2. LU S
(Chairman (appointed on 10 June 2010) (£ (RZE—FF
and son of Mr. Hung Kin Sang, Raymond NHAHTHEZT) K
and Ms. Wong Kar Gee, Mimi) HEAE I A A
FRELZLZ5F)
3. Mr. Fang Chin Ping oF HEFEE
(retired on 24 November 2009) (R=ZZEZh=F
+—AZTHHERE)
Independent Non-executive Directors BB ITEE
1. Mr. Lun Tsan Kau h, BEREE
2. Mr. Lam Ka Wai, Graham Dx, MK B ST &
3. Mr SuRulia 3. EoufERA
(appointed on 24 February 2010) (R-—E—FF
ZRAZTmERE)
4. Mr. Lo Yun Tai 4. EREEE
(retired on 24 November 2009) (R=ZEZNhE
+—AZ+MHARME)
Non-executive Director HFHITEE
1. Ms. Wong Kar Gee, Mimi 1. TREZL
(re-designated from Chairman and (R=—ZF—ZFF~NHLH
executive director to non-executive BT EREITEFET
director on 10 June 2010 and mother of BIFRTEER
Mr. Hung Kai Mau, Marcus) BT EZ B F)
Save as stated above, there is no relationship BrIA FIREESN KRB EKE 2
(including financial, business, family or other (BEVHEE BELE  REL
material relevant relationship(s)), among members RETEEMBIEZR)

of the Board.
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(ii)

22

Responsibility

The business and affairs of the Company and its
subsidiaries (“Group”) is under the direction of and
vested with the Board pursuant to the bye-laws of
the Company (the “Bye-laws”). The Board is the
ultimate decision-making body of the Group except
in respect of matters reserved for shareholders. The
Board is ultimately accountable and responsible for
the performance and affairs of the Group and for
the preparation of the accounts of the Company.
The Board retains overall responsibility for all major
matters of the Group, which include approving
and monitoring all policy matters, managing
overall strategies and budgets, internal control and
risk management systems, entering into material
transactions (especially any transactions which may
involve a conflict of interest within the Board),
providing financial information, appointing directors
of the Company and other significant financial
and operational matters. Certain of that authority
is delegated by the Board to the management in
order to enable the management to develop and
implement the Group’s strategic planning and
operations, and to conduct the Group’s day-to-
day activities. The Board diligently monitors the
management’s performance in that regard but
responsibility for conducting the Group’s daily
operations rests with the management.

The role of the Group’s Chairman is separate
from that of the Group’s Managing Director
and their respective responsibilities are set out
by the Board in the Code of the Company. The
Managing Director is responsible for day-to-day
management of the business of the Group. The
Chairman provides leadership for the Board to
ensure that the Board acts diligently and in the
best interests of the Group and that meetings are
planned and conducted effectively. The Chairman
is also responsible for approving the agenda for
each Board meeting, taking into account, where
appropriate, matters proposed by the directors of
the Company (”Directors”). The Chairman also
actively encourages the Directors to make full
contributions and actively participate in the Board's
affairs.

(ii)
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(iii)
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The Board established two Board committees,
namely the Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee, to oversee particular aspects of the
Group's affairs. The Company reviews the said
arrangements on a periodic basis to ensure that
they remain appropriate to its needs. The Board
and the Board committees work under the well-
established corporate governance practices in
accordance with the requirements of the Listing
Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

Each Director of the Company is provided,
upon reasonable request made to the Board,
with means, at the Company's expense, to seek
independent professional advice in furtherance of
his/her duties if necessary. The Independent Non-
executive Directors are high calibre executives or
professionals with relevant industry experience
and provide their skills and expertise to the Board.
Their brief biographical details are on pages 9 to
11 of this Annual Report. They ensure that the
Board and Company maintains high standards in
its financial and other mandatory reportings as
well as providing adequate checks and balances
to safeguard the interests of shareholders and the
Company as a whole.

The Board regularly reviews its composition and
structure to ensure appropriate levels of expertise
and independence are attained and maintained.

Appointment and Succession Planning of the
Directors

The Company has not established a nomination
committee. The Company follows a formal,
considered and transparent procedure for the
appointment and removal of Directors. All Directors
who are appointed to fill casual vacancies are
subject to re-election at the first general meeting
after their appointments by the Board. All Directors,
including the Independent Non-executive Directors
are subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years and may be re-elected or be
taken into account in determining the number of
Directors to retire as provided by the Bye-law. All
Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed
for a term of three years, subject to retirement by
rotation as aforesaid.

(iii)
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(iv) Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the Directors of
the Company (the “Securities Code”) on terms no
less exacting than the standard set out in Model
Code contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules.
Pursuant to the Securities Code, a Director must,
among other things, notify the Chairman or his/her
alternates in writing of the specific purpose of a
proposed dealing in the securities of the Company
and receive a dated written acknowledgement
before any dealing. All Directors have confirmed
that they have complied with the required standard
set out in the Securities Code throughout the year.

(v) The attendance record of the Directors at the
regular meetings of the Board during the reporting
period is as follows:

Name A

Mr. Hung Kin Sang, Raymond HEAEKE
Mr. Hung Kai Mau, Marcus BRI A
Mr. Lun Tsan Kau mE IR &
Mr. Lam Ka Wai, Graham MERESEE

Mr. Su Ru Jia BoLERE (N
(appointed on 24 February 2010)
Ms. Wong Kar Gee, Mimi
Mr. Fang Chin Ping
(retired on 24 November 2009)
Mr. Lo Yun Tai

(retired on 24 November 2009)

THREZL

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 20
April 2005 and includes a majority of Independent Non-
executive Directors. The Remuneration Committee
comprises one Executive Director, Mr. Hung Kin Sang,
Raymond, and two Independent Non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Lun Tsan Kau (Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee (appointed on 24 November 2009 to replace
Mr. Lo Yun Tai who retired on 24 November 2009)) and
Mr. Lam Ka Wai, Graham. The Remuneration Committee
is responsible for making recommendations to the Board
regarding the Company’s policy and structure in relation to
the remuneration of the Directors and senior management
of the Company. The Remuneration Committee also
reviews the assessment criteria and remuneration policies
and terms of employment of all Executive and Independent
Non-executive Directors and senior management of the
Company with reference to corporate goals and objectives
resolved by the Board from time to time.
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(v) EHREHHE SEFLEERS
BRBBRIT

No. of meetings attended/held
HEEBRRE B

8/9
7/9
8/9
7/9
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Corporate Governance Repor’r

The attendance record at the meetings of the
Remuneration Committee during the reporting period for
each of the committee members is as follows:

Name i

HEERAE
MR B E

Mr. Hung Kin Sang, Raymond
Mr. Lam Ka Wai, Graham
Mr. Lun Tsan Kau
(appointed on 24 November 2009)
Mr. Lo Yun Tai

(retired on 24 November 2009) +—A=-+mAER

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lun Tsan Kau (Chairman
of the Audit Committee (appointed on 24 November 2009
to replace Mr. Lo Yun Tai who retired on 24 November
2009)), Mr. Lam Ka Wai, Graham and Mr. Su Ru lJia.
All of them have relevant professional qualifications in
accounting or related financial management expertise.
The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing and
assessing senior management and external auditors of
the Company, the internal control system and external
auditing process and findings, the accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group, Listing Rules and
statutory compliance, and meet to discuss matters relating
to auditing, internal control, risk management and
financial reporting (including the interim financial report
for the first six-months of each financial year).

The attendance record at the meetings of the Audit
Committee during the reporting period for each of the
committee members is as follows:
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No. of meetings attended/held
HESERY B

4/4
4/4
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No. of meetings attended/held

Name HH HESERE AR
Mr. Lun Tsan Kau mEMNEE 4/d
Mr. Lam Ka Wai, Graham MRESEE 4/4
Mr. Su Ru Jia ufERE (RZZE—FF

(appointed on 24 February 2010) “RAZtImAEET) 1”1
Mr. Lo Yun Tai EEBLEE (RZZETNF

(retired on 24 November 2009) +—A-+WAEMT) 2/2
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TEERREE

The main duties of the Audit Committee include making
proposals and recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and removal of external auditors and
their terms of engagement and termination as well as
monitoring the independence and effectiveness of the
external auditors and recommending appropriate actions if
required.

AUDITORS' REMUNERATION

For the year ended 30 June 2010, payments made
to Mazars CPA Limited, the external auditors of the
Company, for providing audit and non-audit services were
approximately HK$450,000 and HK$20,000 respectively.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

As the Board believes that a well-designed system of
internal control is crucial to safeguard the assets of the
Group and to ensure reliability of financial reporting as
well as compliance with the relevant rules and regulations,
a system of internal controls has been set up, with the
intention of preventing material misstatements and losses
and to manage, and, where possible, eliminate risks of
failure in operational systems to achieve the Group's
objectives.

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s
internal control, financial control and risk management
system and monitors their effectiveness from time to time,
and reviews the scope and frequency of audit reviews
according to risk assessment. Special reviews may also be
performed on areas of concern identified by management
or the Audit Committee from time to time.

During the reporting year, the Directors reviewed the
effectiveness of the internal control system of the
Group, including the functions of financial, operation,
compliance and risk management. The review showed
that the internal control system operated, on the whole,
satisfactorily. The results of the review were reported to
the Audit Committee. The Directors also, where necessary,
initiated necessary improvements and reinforcements to
the internal control system.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The rights of shareholders and the procedures for
demanding a poll on resolutions at shareholders’ meeting
are contained in the Company’s Bye-laws. Amendments
to the Listing Rules which came into force on 1 January
2009 have made it mandatory for all voting at meetings of
shareholders of the Company to be taken by way of poll.
The Company has taken steps to ensure compliance with
the requirements about voting by poll and arrangements
have been made for the voting of each of the resolutions
being put to the meetings to be dealt with by means of
poll vote. At general meeting the Board and the members
of Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee
are responsible for answering questions raised by the
shareholders.

In order to provide detailed and up-to-date information
to our shareholders, the Company has a range of
communication channels to ensure its shareholders are
kept well-informed. These comprise communication by
way of general meetings, annual reports, public notices,
announcements and circulars.

The Company seeks to enhance communications and
positive relationships with investors by maintaining regular
dialogues with institutional investors and analysts to keep
them up-to-date about the business, operations and
development of the Group, and to reply to any enquiries
from investors appropriately. Investors are welcome to
make enquiries to the Company at its office in Hong Kong
or directly visit the Company’s website (www.applieddev.
com) for any updated corporate and financial information.

PUBLIC FLOAT

The Board’s knowledge of the public float is based on
information publicly available to the Company. As at the
date of this report, over 25% of the total issued share
capital of the Company was held by the public.
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THE BOARD’S STATEMENT ik

The Company believes that good corporate governance ARNAFEE DEERZEENMKER
reflects a high quality of management and operations MEEELEENAEB XK EE- R
of the Group’s operations and business. Good corporate I EE R EN Y EZERESNE
governance can safeguard the proper use of funds and WA ER  WIREREREEZ - BIEE

effective allocation of resources which in turn, protect the HAORERFLEESAEEBEARARZZK
interests of the shareholders. The management recognises BhHEeE  BENTEREFBDESE
the importance of good corporate governance practices ZIKEENEE o

and will use its best endeavours to maintain, strengthen
and improve the standard and quality of the Group's
corporate governance.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report

MBEMAZARS

TO THE MEMBERS OF
APPLIED DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Applied Development Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
"Group”) set out on pages 32 to 105, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 30th
June, 2010, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
This responsibility includes designing, implementing and
maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of the financial
statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting
estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.
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Mazars CPA LIMITED

5 5 o ot 171 95 05 7 A7 IR )
42nd Floor, Central Plaza,

18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
T Vb VTV VA 1 8% Hh BRI 4248
Tel FEHG * (852) 2909 5555

Fax 8K : (852) 28100032

Email FEH# : info@mazars.com.hk
Website #4k : www.mazars.com.hk
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Independent Auditor’'s Report

B 2 BENRE S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audit and to report
our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant
to the entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group as at 30th June, 2010 and of the Group's profit
and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 27th August, 2010

Eunice Y M Kwok
Practising Certificate number: P04604
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

e EmRaE R

Year ended 30th June, 2010 HE =T —

Turnover

Other income

Net increase in fair values of
investment properties

Impairment loss on properties
under development

Administrative expenses

Share-based payments

Finance costs

Share of results of a jointly
controlled entity

Profit (Loss) before taxation
Taxation

Profit (Loss) for the year

Other comprehensive Income (Loss)

Net gain (loss) on fair value changes of
available-for-sale investments

Transfer to profit or loss on disposal of
available-for-sale investments

Exchange difference arising on translation

of foreign operations
Income tax on other comprehensive
income (loss)

Other comprehensive income (loss)
for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income (loss)
for the year, attributable to equity
holders of the Company

EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE
Basic

Diluted

32

TERASTAILFR

H A A
KEMERTE

g lIpE i
BRPMEZ
B8
THEA
PARRA BB S N2 B
AR A
FE(E— R LRI
NS ES

BRBLANGER (BHE)
MR

FEBN (BR)

Ht2mEWKH (FR)

AHERERNTEZ
Wk (BER) F8

BERHERENSER

BMEBIRBEEZ
SMIEZ B8

REMmEERE (EE)
Z P H

FEHRBIER
Hit2E W (B1R)

BEARTRERFEA
REEZEEF
(&518) RE

BREN (BFR)
E-¥N

2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 3E FExT FET
4,847 5,058
6 11,399 525
14 64,452 13,500
- (4,790)
(23,344) (25,389)
28 (5,332) =
8 (462) (1,065)
308 351
51,868 (11,810)
9 (4,295) =
10 47,573 (11,810)
93 (111)
- (505)
- 1
93 (615)
47,666 (12,425)

13

5.67 HK cents
AL

(1.41) HK cents
A

5.67 HK cents
AL

(1.41) HK cents
7SI
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Non-current assets
Investment properties
Property, plant and equipment
Other assets

Interest in a jointly controlled entity

Prepaid lease payments
— non-current portion
Available-for-sale investments

Current assets
Trade and other receivables
Promissory note receivable from

FRBEE

REMF

W - BE &R
Hib & E

R — R FEHZE SR A
Rzt
BENEEMK

— FEmEEMH
A HERE

RBEE
B 5 M E A EUFIR

& s — ) Ak B 422

a jointly controlled entity RREHEE
Amount due from a director JE W E = 5018
Amount due from a jointly i Ui — s £ R4

controlled entity RNAElZFIA
Prepaid lease payments FERHEERNRK

— current portion — REES D
Bank balances and cash RITEGF MRS
Current liabilities REBE
Other payables Eoh fE T 5RIE
Tax payable FES BT
Amounts due to directors FEREEFHIE
Secured bank borrowings BIKIRRITIEE

— due within one year — R—FAHH
Obligations under finance leases B A T 49 EE

— due within one year — R—F RN
Bank overdrafts RITEXZ
Net current assets REEEFRE
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBEE
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Note
B 5T

14
15
16

18
19

21
24

22

18

24

are MR

At 30th June, 2010 —E—ZTFE,NA=+H

2010 2009
—g-8F —2TNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
T T
437,088 204,400
5,174 172,338
1,546 1,846
27,676 27,368
1,632 1,672
220 127
473,336 407,751
3,817 1,580
171,600 171,600
146 =
16,383 16,377
40 40
2,403 132
194,389 189,729
3,347 3,094
26 =
15,317 1,409
57,000 3,000
21 250

- 5L
75,711 8,712
118,678 181,017
592,014 588,768
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

are MR

At 30th June, 2010 —E—FF,~A=1+H

2010 2009
—E-BF _TTHF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B = FER FAT
Capital and reserves EXR#EE
Share capital A&7 27 8,389 8,732
Treasury shares EFAR 5 29 - (8,911)
Share premium and reserves pEER#EES 579,356 534,926
Total equity A 587,745 534,747
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Secured bank borrowings EIRIRRITIEE
— due more than one year — A —FEIE 25 - 54,000
Obligations under finance leases S A 49 FIE
— due more than one year —HBE—FEIE 26 - 21
Deferred tax liabilities BLEHIBEE 30 4,269 -
4,269 54,021
592,014 588,768

The consolidated financial statements on pages 32 to FIBERFI05B S 2 B SHE
105 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board ERZE—ZTENAZ-T+HHEKEES
of Directors on 27th August, 2010 and are signed on its BOE R RERT  WH NIEEREKRER

behalf by: =
Hung Kai Mau, Marcus Hung Kin Sang, Raymond
Chairman Managing Director
FE BT
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Consolidated Statement of Chcmges in Equi’ry
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Year ended 30th June, 2010 HE - — E/\ﬂ +E|¢¢J*

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
DARRERAAELRR

Share Investment Capital Distri-
Share  Treasury Share  options revaluation ~ Other redemption ~ Capital  butable Translation Retained
capital  shares premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve profits Total
BRE REE( EARE AR
Bx ERRS RGEE RE  BE BMEE RE EARE  RE AERE REEN e
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 ~ HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Tin TEr  TEr  TEn  TEr  TEr TRn  FEx  TEn TR TEmawiEn

(Note 1) (Note2)  (Note3)
(i#%81) (¥ (E3)
At 1st July, 2008 RIEENE
tA-H 873 (8911) M5 8486 123 8551 11575 204610 93,961 60 219,605 547,239
Loss for the year FEER - - - - - - - - = - (11810 (11,810)

Other comprehensive ~ AEEZE

income (loss) for the year W3 (&)
Net loss on fair value AEERE

changes of available-for- AT B iZ

sale investments FEE - - = = (111) = 7 - ] . i )
Transfer to profitor loss ~ HEFRHE

on disposal of avallable- ~ RERERZ

for-sale investments Bak - > - = (505) - z . 7 g 3 (509)
Exchange difference AEENER L

arising on translation ERZE

of foreign operations = = = = = = & B i 1 - [
Transactions with owners A FERE

of the Company, LRGeS

recognised directly EERT

in equity
Repurchase of own shares  @EER(D )] - - = - - 2 - - - 67) (67)

Transfer to retained profits BERER /
onexpirylcancellation R EEE

of share options REEH - - - (8480) = = = = = - 8486 -
At 30th June, 2009 RZEENE
~A=1H 872 (8911 445 - {9y 8SI 1577 204610 93961 61 206214 534,747
At 1st July, 2009 RZZENE
+A-A 8732 (8911) 445 - (493 851 M5 204610 93,961 61 216214 534,747
Profit for the year EEaA - - - - - - - - - - 41513 41573

Other comprehensive ~ AFEZT
income for theyear Wi

Net gain on fair value HEERE
changes of availablefor- ~ ATEZE)

sale investments LG - - - - 3 - - - - - - 5
Transactions with owners A TERE
of the Company, LR NER
recognised directly BERR
in equity
Cancelation of HHERRR
treasury shares (343) 8,911 - - - - 33 - - - 89N -
Equity-settled share-based  DAEGEERH
payments BERFRZ
i - - R ) - - - - - - - 53
At30thJune, 2000 R-T-FE
~A=tH 8,389 - M5 533 (400) 8551 11920 204610 93,961 61 254876 587,745

Applied Development Holdings Limited % h 2 %5 @A MR 2 & ¢ Annual Report 2010 43§ 35



Consolido’red Statement of Changes in Equity

/\\’T\

Year ended 30th June, 2010 HE =T —

36

ARRE B

The other reserve of the Group represents the fair value
adjustment at the date of transfer of property, plant and
equipment to investment properties.

The capital reserve of the Group represented contributed
surplus arising from the cancellation of share premium
account of the Company pursuant to a special resolution
passed by the Company on 22nd February, 1999 and
waivers of loans from minority shareholders of subsidiaries
of the Company during the years ended 30th June, 2006
and 2008.

The distributable reserve of the Group arose from the
cancellation of share capital and share premium account
of a subsidiary of the Company, Applied Electronics
Limited, pursuant to a scheme of arrangement which
became effective on 10th January, 1989.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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Year ended 30th June, 2010 & T —ZFXA=1THILFE
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2010 2009
—E-EF —ETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETES
Profit (Loss) before taxation FET (B8) =Al 51,868 (11,810)
Adjustments for: FHEIER
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BEMEREZ
e 1,659 4,482
Dividend income SN PN (3) (11)
Finance costs BhE A A 462 1,065
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments HERHEERE 2
Wz - (226)
Gain on disposal of an antique HE—HaE 2l (2,196) =
Share-based payments LARR 1D B LR 2 4 3K 5,332 =
Impairment loss recognised in respect of B 5 K E fth fE Wi sk IE
trade and other receivables ERERREEE 196 235
Impairment loss of property, plant and equipment 42 - [RE M&REZ
B EE - 4,790
Interest income F B A (2) (34)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment  HEWE BE &
HiE 2 BB - 186
Net increase in fair values of investment properties &K&W 7 N FEE
SEIE N (64,452) (13,500)
Release of prepaid lease payments FRER TR E R 40 40
Share of results of a jointly controlled entity JE 4 — R 2L Rl 422 )
NGO E (308) (351)
Operating cash flows before changes EEESRBAZ
in working capital RERER (7,404) (15,134)
Changes in working capital: EEESE
Trade and other receivables 25 &ﬁi{’ﬂfﬂi (2,433) (221)
Other payables H At FE AT 5K 253 978
Net advance from a director *$?§H¢A/¥§E 3,429 -
Net cash used in operating activities RETHMAZRES EE (6,155) (14,377)
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INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Advance to a jointly controlled entity
Dividend received
Interest received
Proceeds from disposal of
available-for-sale investments
Proceeds from disposal of an antique
Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Purchase of available-for-sale investments
Additions to investment properties
Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Net cash used in investing activities

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Finance charges paid in respect of obligations
under finance leases

Interest paid

Net advance from directors

New bank borrowings raised

Repayment of bank borrowings

Repayment of obligations under finance leases

Repurchases of own shares

Net cash from financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of the year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

Analysis of the balances of cash
and cash equivalents
Bank balances and cash
Bank overdrafts

—SEAXA=TALFRE

RETH

BT — R EES A
B AR B

EFE

&S AT SR E TS
KIE
HE—HHEMBRIE
HEWE - BEREE
Fri5 k18
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BAYE - BERF&E

REFHMAZ
REFH

MEEE
MEHEAEENRE
&M
ERFHE
EFEENFFR
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EEBFTER
BEREMNARE
Bl FE A
BMEFHMEZ
REFH

RERREEEZ
RERE M OB

FNRERREEEY

SERREED HE
FRRERALEEY

RERRESEUER
Z 5 #
RITHEERRS
RITEX

2010 2009
—E-EF —EENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FATT
(6) (5)

3 11

2 34

- 410

2,496 =

- 666
- (6)
(2,525) =
(206) (4,033)
(236) (2,923)
(10) (33)
(452) (1,032)
10,333 1,409
4,000 18,000
(4,000) (3,000)
(250) (571)

- (67)
9,621 14,706
3,230 (2,594)
(827) 1,766

- 1

2,403 (827)
2,403 132

- (959)

2,403 (827)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an
exempted company with limited liability. Its shares
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses
of the registered office and the principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the
section headed “Corporate Information” in the
annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollar (“HK$"), which is
the functional and presentation currency of the
Company.

The Company acts as an investment holding
company. The Group is principally engaged in
resort and property development, and property and
investment holding. The activities of the principal
subsidiaries of the Company and a jointly controlled
entity of the Group are set out in notes 37 and 17
to these financial statements respectively.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These consolidated
financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure requirements under the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).
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These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a basis consistent with the accounting
policies adopted in the 2009 financial statements.
The adoption of the new/revised HKFRSs that
are relevant to the Group and effective from the
current year had no significant effects on the results
and financial position of the Group for the current
and prior years, except that certain presentation
and disclosures of financial statements items
have been revised. A summary of the principal
accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out
below.

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs

HKAS 1 (Revised): Presentation of Financial
Statements

HKAS 1 (Revised) requires transactions with owners
to be presented separately from all other income
and expenses in a revised statement of changes
in equity. The revised Standard however allows
non-owner changes in equity to be shown in a
single statement (the statement of comprehensive
income) or two statements (the income statement
and the statement of comprehensive income). The
Group has elected to prepare one statement. In
addition, the revised Standard requires that when
comparative information is restated or reclassified,
a statement of financial position as at the
beginning of the comparative period, in addition
to the statements of financial position as at the
end of the current period and the comparative
period, should be presented. Since the Group did
not restate comparative information during the
year, this new requirement has no impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

HKAS 23 (Revised): Borrowing costs

HKAS 23 (Revised) eliminates the option to expense
borrowing costs and requires that borrowing costs
directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of a qualifying asset should be
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. The
adoption of the revised Standard had no significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Finonciol Statements

Amendments to HKFRS 2: Share-based payments
— Vesting conditions and cancellations

Amendments to HKFRS 2 clarify that vesting
conditions include service and performance
conditions only, and all cancellations, whether by
the entity or by other parties, should receive the
same accounting treatment. The adoption of these
amendments had no significant impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 27: Cost of an Investment in
a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled Entity or Associate

Amendments to HKAS 27 remove the distinction
between dividends distributed from pre- and post-
acquisition profits from the definition of the cost
method and replace it with a requirement to
recognise all dividends received in profit or loss
once the entity’s right to receive the dividend is
established. As from 1 July 2009, all dividends
receivable from subsidiaries, associates and jointly
controlled entities are recognised in the Company’s
profit or loss regardless of whether they are made
out of the pre- or post-acquisition profits. The
carrying amount of the investment in the investee
however is assessed for impairment as a result of
the investee declaring the dividend. In accordance
with the transitional provision in the Amendments,
the new policy is applied only prospectively from
the current period and thus no restatement is made
to prior periods.
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Year ended 30th June, 2010 HEE—ZE—ZFF NA=THLFE

Improvements to HKFRSs (2008)

Improvements to HKFRSs (2008) contain
improvements to a number of Standards aiming to
remove inconsistencies and clarify wording in the
Standards. The adoption of those improvements
had resulted in a number of changes in the
details of the Group’'s accounting policies. Of
those changes, only those as described below are
considered more significant to the Group:

Amendments to HKAS 40: Investment Property

Amendments to HKAS 40 require property under
construction or development for future use
as an investment property to be classified as
investment property and measured at fair value.
The amendments however allow, if the fair value
cannot be reliably determined, the investment
property under construction or development to
be measured at cost until such time when the
fair value can be determined or construction is
complete. Previously, such property was carried at
cost less any accumulated impairment losses. The
Group has applied the amendments prospectively
from 1st July, 2009 in accordance with the relevant
provisions. As a result of bringing its accounting
policy in line with the new requirement, the
properties under development that were previously
classified as property, plant and equipment have
been reclassified as investment properties and
measured at fair value as from 1st July, 2009.

Amendments to HKAS 36: Impairment of Assets

The Amendments require additional disclosures to
be made when discounted cash flows are used to
estimate “fair value less cost to sell”, consistent
with the disclosures required when the discounted
cash flows are used to estimate “value in use”. The
adoption of these amendments had no significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures

Amendments to HKFRS 7 require additional
disclosure about fair value measurements
and liquidity risk. The fair value measurement
disclosures are presented in note 3 to these
financial statements, and the liquidity risk
disclosures are not significantly impacted by the
amendments. The Group has taken advantage
of the transitional provisions set out in the
amendments, under which comparative information
for the newly required disclosures about the fair
value measurements of financial instruments are
not provided in the financial statements.

HKFRS 8: Operating Segments

The Standard, replacing HKAS 14: Segment
Reporting, requires segment information to be
reported based on internal information used by
management to evaluate the performance of
operating segments and allocate resources to
those segments. The adoption of HKFRS 8 had
not resulted in a re-designation of the Group's
reportable segments as compared with the primary
reportable segments determined in accordance with
HKAS 14.

Basis of measurement

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements is historical
cost, except for investment properties and certain
financial instruments, which are measured at fair
values as explained in the accounting policies
below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries as at 30th June each year. The financial
statements of its subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting year as that of the Company using
consistent accounting policies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Re IS E MY R
Year ended 30th June, 2010 HEE—ZE—ZFF NA=THLFE

All intra-group balance, transactions, income and
expenses and profits and losses resulting from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in full.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from
the date on which the Group obtains control and
continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity in which the Company has
the power to govern the financial and operating
policies so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. The carrying
amount of the investments is reduced to its
recoverable amount on an individual basis. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividends received and
receivable.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or building that
are held by owner or lessee under finance lease to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation.
These include properties held for a currently
undetermined future use, properties that are
being constructed or developed for future use as
investment properties and properties that are held
under operating lease, which satisfy the definition
of investment property and carry at fair value.

Investment properties are stated at fair value at
the end of the reporting period. Any gain or loss
arising from a change in fair value is recognised
in the profit and loss. The fair value of investment
property is based on a valuation by an independent
valuer who holds a recognised professional
qualification and has recent experience in the
location and category of property being valued.
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Notes to the Consolidated Finonciol Statements

An investment property is derecognised upon
disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the profit or loss in the year in
which the item is derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than
properties under development, are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use. Repairs and maintenance are charged
to the profit and loss during the year in which they
are incurred.

Properties under development are stated at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes
development expenditure, borrowing costs
capitalised and other directly attributable expenses
incurred during the development period.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost
less accumulated impairment losses of items
of property, plant and equipment, other than
properties under development, over their estimated
useful lives from the date on which they are
available for use and after taking into account
of their estimated residual value, using the
straight-line method, at the following rates per
annum:

Freehold land Nil
Leasehold land and Over the shorter of the
buildings term of the leases or
25 years, whichever is
shorter
Leasehold improvements 20%
Furniture, fixtures and 10% to 25%
equipment
Motor vehicles 10% to 33'/3%

Motor boats 10% to 20%
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Assets held under finance leases are depreciated
over their expected useful lives on the same basis
as owned assets or, whereas shorter, the terms of
the relevant leases.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item) is included in
the profit or loss in the year in which the item is
derecognised.

Prepaid lease payments

Prepaid lease payments are up-front payments to
acquire fixed-term interests in lessee-occupied land.
The premiums are stated at cost and are amortised
over the period of the lease on a straight-line basis
to the profit or loss.

Other assets

Other assets are antiques held for long-term
investment purposes and are stated at cost less
accumulated impairment losses.

Jointly controlled entity

Joint venture arrangements that involve the
establishment of a separate entity in which
venturers have joint control and none of the
venturers has unilateral control over the economic
activity of the entity are referred to as a jointly
controlled entity.

The Group’'s investment in jointly controlled
entity is accounted for under the equity method
of accounting. The consolidated statement of
comprehensive income includes the Group's
share of the post-acquisition results of the jointly
controlled entity for the year. The consolidated
statement of financial position includes the Group’s
share of the net assets of the jointly controlled
entity and also goodwill
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

When a group entity transacts with a jointly
controlled entity of the Group, unrealised profits or
losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group's
interest in the jointly controlled entity, except to
the extent that unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which
case, the full amount of losses is recognised.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised on the consolidated statement of
financial position when a group entity becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities
are initially measured at fair value. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into
one of the two categories, which are loans and
receivables and available-for-sale financial assets.
All regular purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
The accounting policies adopted in respect of each
category of financial assets are set out below.
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Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. At the end
of each reporting period subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less accumulated impairment losses. An impairment
loss is recognised in profit or loss when there
is objective evidence that the asset is impaired,
and is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
the estimated future cash flows discounted at
the original effective interest rate. Impairment
losses are reversed in subsequent periods when an
increase in the asset’s recoverable amount can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, subject to a restriction
that the carrying amount of the asset at the date
the impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets that are either designated at this
category or not classified in any of the other
categories of financial assets. They are measured
at fair value with changes in value recognised as a
separate component of equity until the assets are
sold, collected or otherwise disposed of, or until
the assets are determined to be impaired, at which
time the cumulative gain or loss previously reported
in equity is transferred to profit or loss.
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When an available-for-sale financial asset is
impaired, an amount comprising the difference
between its acquisition cost (net of any principal
repayment and amortisation) and current fair
value, less any previously recognised impairment
loss, is transferred from equity to profit or loss.
Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss in
respect of available-for-sale equity instrument are
not reversed through profit or loss. Any subsequent
increase in fair value of available-for-sale equity
instrument after recognition of impairment loss is
recognised in equtiy. Reversal of impairment loss
of available-for-sale debt instruments are reversed
through profit or loss, if the increase in fair value
of the instrument can be objectively related to
an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued
by a group entity are classified according to the
substance of the contractual arrangements entered
into and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities are recognised
initially at their fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using effective interest
method, unless the effect of discounting would be
insignificant, in which case they are stated at cost.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds, net of direct issue costs.
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Treasury shares

Applied Investment (Asia) Limited ("Applied
Investment”) became a subsidiary of the Company
in 1995. On consolidation, the shares in the
Company held by Applied Investment have been
accounted for using the treasury stock method
whereby equity attributable to the equity holders
of the Company is reduced by the carrying amount
of the shares in the Company held by Applied
Investment at the date when Applied Investment
became the subsidiary of the Company. On disposal
of the shares in the Company held by Applied
Investment, consideration received is recognised
directly in equity. The difference between the sale
consideration and the carrying amount of the
shares disposed of is recognised in retained profits.
No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the assets expire, or the
financial assets are transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition
of a financial asset, the difference between the
asset's carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and the cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised directly in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews internal and external sources of information
to determine whether the property, plant and
equipment, prepaid lease payments, investments in
antiques, subsidiaries and a jointly controlled entity
have suffered an impairment loss or impairment
loss previously recognised no longer exists or
may be reduced. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated, based
on the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. Where it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
smallest group of assets that generates cash flows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

If the recoverable amount of an asset or a
cash-generating unit is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
or cash-generating unit is reduced to its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses are recognised as an
expense immediately.

A reversal of impairment loss is limited to the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating
unit that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversal of impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
when the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, with reference to fair value of
consideration received or receivable, and on the
following basis.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised
when the properties are let out and on a
straight-line basis over the lease terms.
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Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised
as assets of the Group at their fair value at the
inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present
value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in
the consolidated statement of financial position
as finance lease obligations. Lease payments
are apportioned between finance charges and
reduction of the lease obligations so as to achieve a
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance
of the liability. Finance charges are charged directly
to profit or loss unless they are directly attributable
to qualifying assets, in which case they are
capitalised in accordance with the Group’s policy on
borrowing costs.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged
to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
terms of the relevant lease. Benefits received and
receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating
lease are recognised as a reduction of rental
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Leasehold land and building

The land and building elements of a lease of
land and building are considered separately for
the purpose of lease classification. Leasehold
land which title is not expected to pass to the
lessee by the end of the lease term is classified
as an operating lease unless the lease payments
cannot be allocated reliably between the land and
building elements, in which case, the entire lease is
classified as a finance lease.

—SEAXA=TALFRE

HE

AEEGRTRERHEHEEE
ZBREB O BB K B R T
MA BIZEORE S EH
%o A HEMBENHY AKREHE
# o

£ E BAEE

BEROBACEENHERR
RARFEEIASAEE ZE
EE’ MEREEERKDEEN

- R THEANEHAER
TAW%#R%*W%@%E%
AEHE - AN FIR LB 23 8 R B
BE R MEOATERD - MR
% FRERNSREAREE S X5t
E-WBERAEENEBEERX
Mo BRI ERATEREBNA
EREBE AEHEXERAR
BAKRBZEERARKETE
A

SEMENBRMNEENRBRERT U
BHAVRRMEBEOXE - BE
WMEEZAIRSBERZNES
HeXHhREAAEBREN
o

HE L+ REF

T RBFHEE 2 -1 MEF B
NEETHESERFEIRE
B HEENAREEMEFER
HEHTAEE TR TRRER Z &
ME - RIEEESREANERE D B
THMEFREBO - ELBER
T BEHEAO-REFERERD
BRI o

Applied Development Holdings Limited & h 2 ¥ % ®AMR A 7 ¢ Annual Report 2010 4 3&



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Year ended 30th June, 2010 HE ==

Foreign currency translation

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recorded in its functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates) at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of each reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the
end of the reporting period. Non-monetary items
carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise. Exchange differences arising
on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried
at fair value are included in profit or loss for
the period except for differences arising on the
retranslation on non-monetary items in respect of
which gain and losses are recognised directly in
equity, in which cases, the exchange differences are
also recognised directly in equity.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group's foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$) at
the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the
reporting period, and their income and expenses
are translated at the average exchange rates for the
year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during the period, in which case, the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are
used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised as a separate component of equity (the
translation reserve). Such exchange differences are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
the foreign operation is disposed of.
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Retirement benefit scheme

Payment to defined contribution retirement benefit
scheme is charged as expenses when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

Details of the retirement benefit scheme are set out
in note 38 to these financial statements.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees of the Group

The fair value of services received determined by
reference to the fair value of share options granted
at the grant date is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding
increase in share options reserve in equity.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options that
are expected to ultimately vest. The impact of the
revision of the estimates, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss with a corresponding adjustment to
share options reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised,
the amount previously recognised in share options
reserve will be transferred to share premium. When
the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share options
reserve will be transferred to retained profits.

Borrowings costs

Borrowings costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction and production of
qualifying assets are capitalised as part of the cost
of those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready
for their intended use or sale.

RIKENETE

HE R FRREFETE 2 HR
EMEE\ETE tiR S M E =8 H R
BF AR 2 B BR o

EHARKEFNFTEFBE T
B R MTFE3SIE -

BRAEGE - UROGERITRZX
&

BRERTAEE LT

PR 2 X FET2E B E
RELBHZAFEEE  &F
f # B B B3R A B 4R 0K 51 AE R
X o Wt (BB ES)
YEAERE 2380

REFNHRER » NREBEEBTEY
BHRREE BIEHE 2
B HEREZEBIT2FE (1)
RIESRARRAR  YHER
R AEREL AR

BAEEITER - TR R BRE
S TR AR ARG
B o E ﬁ%ﬂx%ﬁ‘ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂiﬂ
BB WTTR » JTH S AU
BT PR RIBEEARE R
A o

BERA

RBE BEXLEARERE
E-EEREFZEERAN 5
BARCIERUFEEKRAD 2 &
Do BREFEEAR LEEME
HIEsT AR HER  ZFBE
RARIELEEARL

Applied Development Holdings Limited & h 2 ¥ ®AMR A 7 ¢ Annual Report 2010 4 3&



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

All other borrowing costs are recognised as and
included in finance costs in profit or loss for the
period in which they are incurred.

Taxation

The charge for current income tax is based on the
results for the year as adjusted for items that are
non-assessable or disallowed. It is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method,
on all temporary differences at the end of the
reporting period between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
financial statements. However, if the deferred tax
arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss, it is
not accounted for.

The deferred tax liabilities or assets are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
period when the asset is recovered or liability is
settled, based on the tax rates and the tax laws
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, tax losses
and credits can be utilised.

Cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash equivalents represent short-term
highly liquid investments which are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of change in
value, net of bank overdrafts.
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Related parties

A party is related to the Group if

directly, or indirectly through one or
more intermediaries, the party controls, is
controlled by, or is under common control
with, the Group; or has an interest in the
Group that gives it significant influence over
the Group; or has joint control over the
Group;

the party is an associate of the Group;

the party is a joint venture in which the
Group is a venturer;

the party is a member of the key
management personnel of the Group;

the party is a close member of the family of
any individual referred to in (a) or (d);

the party is an entity that is controlled,
jointly controlled or significantly influenced
by or for which significant voting power in
such entity resides with, directly or indirectly,
any individual referred to in (d) or (e); or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of the Group,
or of any entity that is a related party of the
Group.
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Critical accounting estimates and judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made various estimates
and judgements which are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. Estimates and judgements
are continually evaluated. The key source of
estimation uncertainty and critical judgements
made in applying accounting policies that result
in significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in
the next financial year or significantly affect the
amounts recognised in the financial statements are
discussed below:

(i) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The management determines the estimated
useful lives of the Group’s property, plant
and equipment based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of
the relevant assets of similar nature and
functions. The estimated useful lives could
be different as a result of actual usage and
maintenance, which could affect the related
depreciation charges included in profit or
loss.

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment

The management determines whether the
Group's property, plant and equipment
are impaired at least on an annual basis
or where an indication of impairment
exists. This requires an estimation of the
recoverable amount of the property, plant
and equipment, which is equal to the
higher of net selling price or the value in
use. Estimating the value in use requires
the management to make an estimate of
the expected future cash flows from the
property, plant and equipment and also to
choose a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash
flows. Any impairment will charge to profit
or loss.
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(ii)

58

Impairment of loans and receivables

The management determines the provision
for impairment of the Group’'s loans
and receivables based on the current
creditworthiness and the past collection
history of each customers and other debtors
and the current market condition. If the
financial conditions of the Group’s customers
and other debtors were to deteriorate,
resulting in an impairment of their ability to
make payments, provision may be required.

Impairment of investments and receivables

The Company and the Group assess annually
if their investments in subsidiaries and
a jointly controlled entity have suffered
any impairment in accordance with HKAS
36 and follow the guidance of HKAS 39
in determining whether promissory note
receivable and/or amounts due from those
entities are impaired. Details of the approach
are stated in the respective accounting
policies. The assessment requires an
estimation of future cash flows, including
expected dividends, from the assets and
the selection of appropriate discount rates.
Future changes in financial performance and
position of these entities would affect the
estimation of impairment loss and cause the
adjustments of their carrying amounts.

Critical judgements made in applying
accounting policies

Properties held for capital appreciation

The Group's investment properties in
Hong Kong with a carrying value of
HK$220,000,000 (2009: HK$170,000,000)
are currently used as directors’ quarters.
However, it is the Group’s intention to hold
the properties for capital appreciation but
not for own use. The Group has appointed a
property agent to seek for potential buyers
in the market. Accordingly, the properties
have been accounted for as investment
properties instead of property, plant and
equipment in the consolidated financial
statements.

(i)
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Notes to the Consolidated Finonciol Statements

The Group's investment properties under
development in Panama with a carrying value of
HK$184,800,000 (2009: HK$165,711,000) are held
for capital appreciation after development but not
for own use. Accordingly, the properties under
development in Panama have been reclassified
from property, plant and equipment to investment
properties in the consolidated financial statements
during the year upon adoption of the new
requirement.

Deferred taxation on fair value gain of investment
properties in Hong Kong

At the end of the reporting period, the accumulated
fair value gain of the Group’s investment properties
in Hong Kong amounted to HK$161,000,000
(2009: HK$111,000,000). The Group's plan is to
sell the properties to the market. Until the date
the disposal is taken place, the properties would
be occupied by the directors on a temporary basis.
Therefore, no significant rental income is expected
to be generated from the properties up to their
disposal. As a result, management considers the
carrying amount of these investment properties
will only be recovered through sale. With capital
gain being exempted from Hong Kong Profits Tax,
management considers no deferred tax liability
shall be recognised in respect of the temporary
differences arising from the accumulated fair value
gain.

Deferred taxation on fair value gain of investment
properties in the PRC

In accordance with the applicable laws and
regulations in the PRC, the Group is subject to Land
Appreciation Tax when it realises its accumulated
fair value gain of its investment properties in the
PRC of approximately HK$21,435,000 (2009:
HK$23,947,000) through disposal of the relevant
investment properties. Management considers the
Group is going to hold the investment properties
for rental income with no intention to dispose
them of in the foreseeable future. In addition,
the current corporate structure allows the Group
to realise the accumulated fair value gain of the
investment properties by disposal of the subsidiary
that currently owns the investment properties. Thus
no deferred tax liability has been recognised for
Land Appreciation Tax in respect of the temporary
differences arising from the accumulated fair value
gain.
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Year ended 30th June, 2010 i E =%

Deferred taxation on fair value gain of investment
properties in Panama

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
had investment properties in Panama with an
accumulated fair value gain of HK$16,564,000
(2009: Nil). It is the intention of the Group to hold
the investment properties for capital appreciation
after development. In accordance with the
applicable laws and regulations in Panama, the
Group is subject to capital gain tax of approximately
HK$2,125,000 when it realises the carrying amount
of the investment properties in Panama. Thus, a
corresponding amount of deferred tax liability has
been recognised as of 30th June, 2010.

Future changes in HKFRS

At the date of authorisation of these financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of
new/revised HKFRSs that are not yet effective for
the current year, which the Group has not early
adopted. The directors do not anticipate that the
adoption of these new and revised HKFRSs in future
periods will have any material impact on the results
of the Group.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Financial risk management objectives
and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments
include available-for-sale investments,
promissory note receivable and amount
due from a jointly controlled entity, bank
balances and cash, other receivable and
payables, secured bank borrowings,
obligations under finance leases and
bank overdrafts. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in the respective
notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments and the policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out
below. Management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.
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Notes to the Consolidated Finonciol Statements

Market risk

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign currency
risk primarily on the promissory note
receivable from a jointly controlled entity
and the Group’s operation in the British
Virgin Islands (“BVI”) and Panama. The
currency giving rise to this risk is United
States dollar (“US$"”). The Group does not
hedge its foreign currency risks because the
rate of exchange between HK$ and US$
is stable under current market condition
and the existing currency exchange policies
adopted by the Government of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to market risk for
changes in interest rates relates primarily
to the Group’s secured bank borrowings
with floating interest rates as at the end of
the reporting period. The interest rates and
terms of repayment have been disclosed
in note 25 to these financial statements.
The Group currently does not have a policy
to hedge against the interest rate risk as
management does not expect any significant
interest rate risk as at the end of the
reporting period.

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the end of the
reporting period and had been applied to
secured bank borrowings that would have
a significant effect to the profit or loss. A
change of 100 basis points was applied to
the yield curves at the respective end of the
reporting period.
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At the end of the reporting period, if interest
rates had been 100 basis points higher/lower
and all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s net profit (2009: net loss) would
decrease/increase (2009: increase/decrease)
by approximately HK$570,000 (2009:
HK$570,000), but there would be no impact
on the other equity reserves.

The sensitivity analysis above has been
determined assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the end of
the reporting period and had been applied
to the exposure to interest rate risk for the
secured bank borrowings in existence at
that date. The 100 basis points increase
or decrease represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change
in interest rates over the period until the
next annual end of the reporting period. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for
20009.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity security
price risk through the available-for-sale
investments. Management manages this
exposure by maintaining a portfolio of
investments with different risk profiles.
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Notes to the Consolidated Finonciol Statements

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that debtors
will default on their obligations to repay the
amounts due to the Group, resulting in a
loss to the Group. The Group’s credit risk is
mainly attributable to the promissory note
receivable and amount due from a jointly
controlled entity.

The management closely monitors the
financial position of the jointly controlled
entity and is ready to take appropriate
actions to safeguard the interest of the
Group as and when necessary. Therefore,
the Group’s exposure to credit risk is to a
large extent limited. The maximum exposure
to credit risk is represented by the carrying
amount of the promissory note receivable
and amount due from a jointly controlled
entity as reported in the Group’s statement
of financial position.

Liquidity risk

The Group’'s objective is to maintain a
balance between continuity of funding
and flexibility through banking facilities
available. At the end of the reporting period,
unutilised banking facilities available to the
Group were approximately HK$23,000,000
(2009: HK$23,000,000).

Applied Development Holdings Limited & hZ %&£ BAMR A 7 ¢ Annual Report 2010 F i

An & B 1 0 5 PR o

Year ended 30th June, 2010 BE —ZE—ZFF A A=1+HILFE

=B

EERREER AKRERE
THEEENANEERIA
MES  ABAEERT
BRAOER - AERBEWE
BT EREEK R

HE S 2 R ey R
&W*ﬁ SRS PG
U FRIR -

ERETRYERABM@ZIE
A 12 6 & Tmﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂjﬁ%&
’E{ =} ERNRIEE
EM%&$%IW@°
%M'Kilﬂﬁﬁﬁé
BRA R - & A{EAR
% i H 55 A 2N & B B 75 ik
L3R A HE U — 2[R 42 )
N A]H A R IR R — A
H[F¥E H| 2 7] 49 fE R BKIE
HEREIE °

B 1

AEEBERERFLHFE
ERMEHES RBEITR
EEEFHETLE &£
WK REBERFEFE
AeRITBREEEOR
23,000,000 T (= £ F
N ¢ 23,000,000%7T) °

63



No’res tfo the Consolidated Financial Statements

B MRS MR

Year ended 30th June, 2010 & =%

—SEAXA=TALFE

I HRBR - NEE Y
BREBRES QT AR

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial
liabilities at the end of the reporting

64

period based on contractual undiscounted IR AT TE B B9 2 2 E g
payments is summarised below: RO :
On demand
or within
one year 1-2 years Total
RERBERAS
BRON—F 1225 Mt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHIT FAT
R=-B-2F
At 30th June, 2010 AA=tH
Other payables H et T8 3,347 - 3,347
Amounts due to directors [ANEE 15,317 - 15,317
Secured bank borrowings Eﬁﬁfﬁfﬂﬁ% 57,464 - 57,464
Obligations under finance leases  Fi& fH 474 & 22 - 22
76,150 - 76,150
R-BENF
At 30th June, 2009 ~AHA=1H
Other payables H A 8 7 5078 3,094 = 3,094
Amounts due to directors JENEEZHE 1,409 = 1,409
Secured bank borrowings E%f&ﬂifﬁmﬁ“ 3,450 54,289 57,739
Obligations under finance leases & fH 474 & 260 22 282
Bank overdrafts RITEX 959 - 959
9,172 54,311 63,483
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(b) Categories and fair value of financial (b) BHRIEMNSERALAFRE
instruments
Fair value disclosures N FEFE
The following table presents the carrying ARFIEREYTE LT AR
value of financial instruments measured at —FE—ZEA=ZF+HMN
fair value at 30th June, 2010 across the Wﬁﬁgz,ﬁﬁﬁ@jﬂﬁ
three levels of the fair value hierarchy as BEBHBREETR
defined in HKFRS 7, Financial Instruments: BEITE: BE EFT
Disclosures, with the fair value of each U=l Rz A FEZER
financial instrument categorised in its P —EHELTENNARF
entirety based on the lowest level of EENHZATFETES
input that is significant to that fair value FEEARTENZEER
measurement. The levels are defined as A EEBE S B AES 0
follows: ™~
. Level 1 (highest level): fair values o E—ZER(HZFa R
measured using quoted prices A FARREE
(unadjusted) in active markets for T %5 A8 R A B 7
identical financial instruments; TEMFECKE
FE) (EA L FER
=
. Level 2: fair values measured using o FEg&:FAR
quoted prices in active markets for RIGE BT % WA
similar financial instruments, or LAy B 7 I B A 3R
using valuation techniques in which B N fFERAFEE
all significant inputs are directly or 1y H &= 2 A 2
indirectly based on observable market 1B T B b Bk [ 3=
data; HERITERZM
BEMERATE
A=
. Level 3 (lowest level): fair values . E=ZZH(HREL
measured using valuation techniques Al o ﬁﬁﬁfﬁ&m
in which any significant input is not i H & 2 i AR
based on observable market data. WAERATEBEZ
Mz EMIERRTF
BFt= -
Financial assets measured at fair value URFEGTEZGFEEE
At 30th June, 2010
R-B-FBFEXA=1+H
Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
et F—ZR BoERK E=ZR
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FTHExT T T T
Available-for-sale Al HEEIRE
investments:
Equity securities REBLEMZ
listed in Hong NE AN 78 25
Kong 220 220 - -
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Year ended 30th June, 2010 HEE—_E—ZFF NA=THLFE

During the year ended 30th June, 2010,
there were no transfers between Level 1 and
Level 2 fair value measurements, and no
transfers into and out of Level 3 fair value
measurements.

The carrying amounts of each of the
following categories of financial assets and
financial liabilities are set out as follows:

Loans and receivables: BEREY

Trade and other receivables B 5 I E Ath fE W R IE

Promissory note receivable from A — i L[R2 I A B Y
a jointly controlled entity A, S e W AR

Amount due from a director e E = IH

Amount due from a jointly R—EERZE S A B8
controlled entity FEWFRIE

Bank balances and cash wITBEFRES

Available-for-sale financial assets: Al (35 E BT 5 5 -

Available-for-sale investments A ISR E
Financial liabilities measured LB HE AT EZ

at amortised cost: HEERE
Other payables Hoh fE R 5RIE
Amounts due to directors EREEFHIE
Secured bank borrowings BIRHETEE
Obligations under finance leases A AR
Bank overdrafts RITEX

In the opinion of the directors, the carrying
amounts of the financial assets and liabilities
as reported in the consolidated statement
of financial position approximate their fair
value.

RZE—FFA=1H
FHFER A FEFAER
BRI — RGN ZHEREB
HELLERATEANE
EEAREBLNERN=
ﬂq o

AR E R % & E R
MBAGEREEY S
T

2010 2009
—E2-%F —TTNHF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEx AT
3,817 1,580
171,600 171,600
146 -
16,383 16,377
2,403 132
194,349 189,689
220 127
3,347 3,094
15,317 1,409
57,000 57,000
21 271

- 959

75,685 62,733

REEEZER  EHA
BB AR R MBI R 2 B
AERUHAELREME
EFRATE -
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CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders, to maintain
an optimal capital structure, to reduce the cost of
capital and to support the Group’s stability and
growth.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to ensure optimal
capital structure and shareholder returns, taking
into consideration the future capital requirements
of the Group. In order to maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount
of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares
or return capital to shareholders. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies or processes during
the years ended 30th June, 2010 and 2009.

TURNOVER AND REVENUE

Turnover and revenue recognised represent rental
income earned.
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6.

68

OTHER INCOME

Dividend income from available-
for-sale investments

Additional consideration received
from disposal of equity interest
in Danshui in 2006 (Note (a))

Gain on disposal of an antique

YA

(M¥E(a))

6.

A ERERE

20064 & XK IE B
ek 2 BB (B

HE—aE RS

HA WA

2010 2009
—g-8E —TINF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F# %
3 11

8,976 -
2,196 -

- 226

2 34

222 254
11,399 525

Gain on disposal of available-for-sale MERHEERE
investments &

Interest income FEWA

Sundry income FETEUIA

Note (a): FizE(a) :

On 27 June 2006, the Group disposed of its 60% equity
interest in a subsidiary of the Company, = F% % X /K
ke 2R AR A A (“Danshui”) for HK$61,956,000.
Deposits of HK$28,302,000 and the remaining balance of
the consideration were received during the years ended
30 June 2005 and 2007, respectively. During the year
ended 30 June 2010, the Group received an additional
consideration of approximately HK$8,976,000 (2009:
Nil) in relation to the disposal of the Danshui interest. In
the opinion of the directors, there were no obligations
or conditions imposed on the Group in respect of the
additional consideration.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management identifies operating segments based
on internal reports that are regularly reviewed by
the chief operating decision maker for the purposes
of allocating resources to segments and assessing
their performance. Segment information is analysed
on the types of goods supplied and services
provided by the Group’s operating divisions.
The Group’s operations are organised into two
operating segments, namely resort development
and property investment, which are the same as
the primary reportable segments determined in
accordance with HKAS 14. The Group's resort
development segment includes multi-purpose
resort communities as well as sale of condo hotels,
residential units and club memberships. No revenue
has been earned by the resort development
segment which is still under development. The
property investment segment includes mainly
residential and commercial properties that are
held for capital appreciation or to earn rentals. No
operating segments have been aggregated.
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Year ended 30th June, 2010 BE=ZE—ZTF - A=THIEFE
Segment revenue and results for the year ended HE2 T ZFA=+HItF
30th June, 2010 are presented below: E 2D e A REEYRIOT -
Resort Property
development investment Total
EBNER MERE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FERT FHET
Turnover = - 4,847 4,847
Results 47
Segment results DEPFEAE 16,554 58,102 74,656
Unallocated corporate income RO EA &l A 21
Unallocated corporate RO ARIER
expenses (22,655)
Finance costs & B AR (462)
Share of results of a jointly  FE{E— Rk R4
controlled entity NEIRELE 308 308
Profit before taxation B 7 A ) 51,868
Taxation I8 (4,295)
Profit for the year FJE 4% Al 47,573
Segment assets and liabilities as of 30th June, 2010 RZEBE—ZFFESA=THZHIO
and other segment information for the year ended ﬁ?&ﬁfﬁ&@ —E-FERX
30th June, 2010 are presented below: A=+HIFEZEMDIES
FIRMAT -
Resort Property Segment
development  investment total Unallocated Total
EBRNEE NERE et h RO @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER FTER FTER

Assets BE 384,154 254,501 638,655 29,070 667,725
Liabilities =1 2,885 4,717 7,602 72,378 79,980
Other segment information: Hihpapas :
Additions to property, plant HEnE  BERRE
and equipment - 102 102 104 206
Additions to investment properties i &l % 2,525 - 2,525 - 2,525
Depreciation of property, plant % BENREZ
and equipment e - 1,055 1,055 604 1,659
Release of prepaid lease payments @R FERHEENH - 40 40 - 40
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Year ended 30th June, 2010 BE —ZT—ZFTF R A=THILFE

Segment revenue and results for the year ended HE_ZEENFA=1THILSF
30th June, 2009 are presented below: B2 5 WA RFEEEBI=HRN
™
Resort Property
development investment Total
ERAER MERE st
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T FHEIT
Turnover IE 2] - 5,058 5,058
Results ¥iE
Segment results DEFEE (4,810) 12,311 7,501
Unallocated corporate income 4% At 2 FULA 96
Unallocated corporate RO ARIER
expenses (18,693)
Finance costs & Bl AR (1,065)
Share of results of a jointly  fE(5—RE LRI
controlled entity NAEIRELE 351 351
Loss before taxation & F5% AT ET 1R (11,810)
Taxation R -
Loss for the year FEEE (11,810)
Segment assets and liabilities as of 30th June, 2009 RZEZNEANA=THZHE
and other segment information for the year ended EERBBEREE_ZTTNFEX
30th June, 2009 are presented below: A=1THIEFEZEMDEEE
FIFREAT
Resort Property Segment
development  investment total  Unallocated Total
FRMER NERE PR RAE @t

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
ThT THT ThT THT THT

Assets BE 364,755 207,441 572,196 25,284 597,480
Liabilities af - 1,298 1,298 61,435 62,733
Other segment information: HEthpapEm
Additions to property, sl R Y
plant and equipment 3,437 596 4,033 - 4,033
Depreciation of property, nE  BERREZTE
plant and equipment - 2,750 2,750 1,732 4,482
Impairment loss on properties BRTNEZNEER
under development 4,790 - 4,790 - 4,790
Release of prepaid lease payments ~ #RBAHEENH - 40 40 - 40
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There was no revenue generated from inter-
segment transactions for both years. Revenue
reported above for the property investment
segment represents rental income earned from
external customers. Segment results represent
profit or loss attributable to each segment without
allocation of central administration costs, share of
the results of a jointly controlled entity, finance
costs, other income and income tax expense.
Segment assets and liabilities represent all assets
and liabilities of reportable segments other than
those that have been eliminated in consolidation.

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are principally located in
Canada, Hong Kong, the People’s Republic of China
other than Hong Kong (the “PRC"), the British
Virgin Islands (the “BVI”) and Panama.

The following table provides an analysis of the
Group's revenue from external customers by
geographical market:

An & B 1 0 5 PR o

Year ended 30th June, 2010 BE —ZE—ZFF A A=1+HILFE

Wﬁﬂiﬁﬁ&ﬁ%km“%%

RPEL - LBEZHER
B b2 WA T R BRR B SN bR
BEZHEZBA - DERERBRE
ADBEPRITRERER @ BA
—EHRZEHRBNES  BE
RS - BR T R E R UA KB
BRIz - D HEERARE
&%ﬁi”%Z%EQF&E
& BRIFNGERFDEH °

hEEE

AEEZKEHMETIZMNMNE
R~ BE - hEARLNE ([
B TEEE8)  REEZH
5 ((RERZES]) ME2S -

TosRH iz E 5 8 0 AR E
REINEETWEZ DT

Turnover by
geographical market

RibET 5 E D
2010 2009
—F-%F _TTNF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHET FAT
Hong Kong a5 122 e
Canada e A - !
PRC s 4,708 5,058
4,847 5,058
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Year ended 30th June, 2010 HEE—E—ZFF A=+ HLFE

The following is an analysis of the carrying amounts REEMGTEHMEZID 2 IEREE
of non-current assets by geographical area in which EREEZDNTNAT :

the assets are located:

Carrying amounts of
non-current assets

FRBEEREE
2010 2009
—E-BF _—TTNAF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TETT
Hong Kong & 222,686 172,509
Canada mEXR 2,556 2,556
Panama Bes 184,800 165,711
PRC Y 35,398 39,480
445,440 380,256
Non-current assets presented above exclude FaIEREEET B IETE T
financial instruments. The Group does not have Ho REBWESARELERIEEL
deferred tax assets, post-employment benefit assets = BEANENEEN;ARE
and rights arising under insurance contracts. SERIEHSE Z#EZ o
Information about major customers FEEEZEE
Included in the revenue generated from the MELESIPZREZBEREA T
property investment segment is the rental income N 2 FEE U A -
earned from the following external customers:
2010 2009
—E-TF —ZTTHhHF
HK$000 HK$’000
FEx THETT
Customer A AR R 1,756 1,698
Customer B BRI 442 695
Customer C BEER 500 535

72 Applied Development Holdings Limited & h 2 ¥ % ®AMR A 7 ¢ Annual Report 2010 4 3&



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

An e B R RS N ot

Year ended 30th June, 2010 B#ZE —Z—TFXA=THILFE
8.  FINANCE COSTS 8. ®EMK
2010 2009
—g-8F —TThE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FABT
Interest expense on bank borrowings /,\EAﬁfﬁﬁ\]i%M% -
wholly repayable within five years RITERZF A 452 1,032
Finance charges on obligations under raﬂéﬁﬂ%’]ﬁkﬁé_‘ﬂ’mﬁzéi\
finance leases 10 33
462 1,065
9.  TAXATION 9. BE
Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at the AREERENESHNDEAEEH
rate of 16.5% (2009: 16.5%) on the Group's net EAEARFFEMGTERT R
estimated assessable profits arising from Hong FIAE16.5% (ZFEENF -
Kong during the year. 16.5% ) 5t12 °
Taxation arising in the PRC and overseas EHE RGN AR EENTH
jurisdictions are calculated at the rates prevailing B BRA @ e AR A IR 1T7E
in the relevant jurisdictions based on existing B BEMEBBHHEETHE o

legislation, interpretations and practices in respect
thereof.
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The tax charge comprises:

Current tax
Hong Kong Profits Tax:
Current year
Under-provision in previous year

Deferred taxation
Origination and reversal of temporary
differences

Total tax charge for the year

MIEERABE :
2010 2009
—E-2F —ZThF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THT
BIHAR 18
B BTG
REE - =
BEFEREBENR 26 =
26 -
IRIERIE
TRHEERENEER
# [l 4,269 -
4,269 -
NEEHGRE 4,295 =
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Year ended 30th June, 2010 BE —ZE—ZFF A A=1+HILFE

Reconciliation of taxation F 18 2 8 7T
2010 2009
—E-FF —ETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHIT
Profit (Loss) before taxation BB (E1E) 51,868 (11,810)
Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate BREBNEHHE16.5%
of 16.5% (2009: 16.5%) (77 FENF ©16.5%)
=& 8,558 (1,949)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible S TF FERR B v M BF N el 07
in determining taxable profit AX 2 2 5,283 5,659
Tax effect of income not taxable 5 TE JE AR Bt i A1) B 2 28 AR AR
in determining taxable profit WA Z iG & (10,644) (3,710)
Differences in tax rates of other RAR AR AT R 2
jurisdictions E=E (1,563) /-
Utilisation of tax losses not recognised  75{# sk #8327 Fi 7 5 18 (2) -
Recognition of taxable temporary HRHREGEEE 2B
differences due to change of expected gy tmE@mEELY
recovery manner of revalued assets S A e B 2144 A
Under-provision in previous year BEFEDEEE 26 =
Others Hib 493 -
Tax expenses for the year RERRIAL W 4,295 =
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Year ended 30th June, 2010 HEE—E—ZFF A=+ HLFE

10. PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 10. FERF (FHi8)
Profit (Loss) for the year has been arrived at after FEHEMN (EBEE) 2Kk T &
charging: I8
2010 2009
—B-BF —TTAF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAET
Staff costs, including directors’ BETHRABE
emoluments: ExMe :
Salaries and other benefits e R HEAET 13,155 12,971
Share-based payments LAR& 7 2 15 5k 18 5,332 =
Retirement benefit RIRE T ET &
scheme contributions R 109 111
Total staff costs 8 TR 18,596 13,082
Auditor’s remuneration: ZEA £ -
Current year REE 450 400
Underprovision in prior year BAEFERETR 20 -
Donations Ei=] ) 824 24
Depreciation of property, VI - BB R
plant and equipment R E 1,659 4,482
Direct operating expenses relating BREEHEE R Em
to investment properties RE MR
that generated rental income EEEESIE 1,790 1,770
Direct operating expenses relating BEEREEELEEeWTZ
to investment properties that did LB
not generate rental income BEELET N 881 450
Impairment loss on trade and B 5 & H fth fE YR I HY
other receivables W EEE 196 235
Loss on disposal of property, HEYE - BER
plant and equipment FERBE - 186
Operating lease payments on premises &) 48 470 457 H 3,101 2,855
Release of prepaid lease payments FEBR T AR & 3K 40 40
11.  PROFIT (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY 1. EAREAQTERZEFEA
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY HE A (B5HE)
The consolidated profit (loss) attributable to FEMERNAANBESZEFEEANES
equity holders of the Company includes a loss of wAl (B1R) BREEAREZE
HK$7,546,000 (2009: HK$15,463,000) which has WS PR Z B8 /R7,546,000
been dealt with in the financial statements of the BT (ZEZF /L F ¢ 15,463,000
Company. JBIT) o
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& MRS M

BERA=ZTHLEE

\\/T\
Year ended 30th June, 2010 HE=—Z—

12. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 12. EENEEMS
EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEE£
The emoluments paid or payable to each BRN\NESE (—EZE/
of the eight (2009: seven) directors were as F:+y) Tt iﬁ
follows: 22T
Hung Hung Lam
Kin Sang, Wong Kar Kai Mau, Fang Chin Lo Lun Su  Ka Wai,
Raymond Gee, Mimi ~ Marcus Ping YunTai TsanKau  Rulia Graham Total
HEE  IFE OBER  GEY  ERF  RER Bif HzE @it
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK§'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000
Thr Thr Thr TEr Thr  ThEr - TEr  TEr it
(Note 1)  (Note1) (Note1)  (Note2)  (Note2) (Note 3)
(are) () (BsR) (B2 (W) (Bzk3)
(Note 4)
(Hita)
Year ended 30th June, 2010  —5-%%
/\ﬁ TALEE
Fees Bh - - - - 50 100 v} 100 292
Other emoluments Efe
Share-based payments (Note 5}~ AR AEREZH
(H35) 2,724 1,600 1,008 - - - - - 5332
Salaries and other benefits 24 REMER 444 3315 1210 40 - - - - 9419
Discretionary honus WA 160 134 57 100 - _ _ _ 451
Retirement benefit scheme RAREHGr Bl
contributions 12 12 12 - - - - - 36
Total emoluments ae 730 5061 2287 570 50 100 1) 100 15530
Year ended 30th June, 2009 —EThE
/\/q +E”:EJ‘-
Fees . - - -0 100 - 100 T30
Other emoluments HM\H
Salaries and other benefits ¥4 REMET 6,203 2,442 720 723 - - - - 10,088
Retirement benefit scheme RIS
contributions 12 12 12 - - - - - 36
Total emoluments ane 6,215 2454 132 13 100 100 - 100 10424
Note 1: During the year, in addition to the Mgkl ANFE - Bz
above, the Group provided rent-free SBI G T RMEEM
accommodation with estimated rateable THEEBELEE IR
values of approximately HK$170,000 Bzt RHEERTE
(2009: HK$170,000), HK$2,241,000 ZEEHES A A
(2009: HK$2,379,000) and HK$207,000 170,000 7t (= &=
(2009: HK$652,000), respectively, to Mr. JLE : 170,000 7z
Hung Kin Sang, Raymond, Ms. Wong 2,241,000 78 (= =&
Kar Gee, Mimi and Mr. Hung Kai Mau, = 7 4 : 2,379,000/
Marcus. or) %207,000 7T (=
EF S F 1 652,000%
L) °
Note 2: On 24th November, 2009, Mr. Fang Chin fisE2: HEFAERERESL
Ping and Mr. Lo Yun Tai resigned as an HERZZBZENF+—HA
executive director and an independent —+EESRIRERK
non-executive director of the Company, RAEIZHITES REL
respectively. EHMITES o
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(b)

B F5 RS Mot

Year ended 30th June, 2010 BE —ZT—ZFTF R A=THILFE

Note 3: Mr. Su Ru Jia was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of
the Company with effect from 24th
February, 2010.

Note 4: Ms. Wong Kar Gee, Mimi, who was
previously an executive director of the
Company, was re-designated as a non-
executive director of the Company with
effect from 10th June, 2010.

Note 5: These represent the estimated value of
share options granted to the directors.

Employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid individuals included
four (2009: four) directors of the Company,
details of whose emoluments are set out
above. The emoluments of the remaining
(2009: one) individual are as follows:

Salaries and other benefits
Discretionary bonus BB TEAL
Retirement benefits

scheme contributions

During both years, no emoluments were
paid by the Group to the five highest
paid individuals, including directors, as an
inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office.
During both years, no directors waived any
emoluments.

¥ MEAET

BRRBHFTEI R

(b)

MiEE3: #aEEER-ZT T
F_A-TMAREZ
ERARR 2B
TE=E -

ffaEd: ERELEIRAANFZ
RIEE =S EF RN
B BT -TEFRX
A+HREEARAR
ZHHMTES

MizEs: ERRTESZBRE
ZAEEHEE

BEM<

TE&EEHFATBEENS
(ZEZFNF IE) &
S -HBMe=FBEN L
X HBph—B(ZFEZEN
F:—F) AT ZBE W
™o

2010 2009
—E-%F —TINF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT Tt
581 558

47 =

12 12

640 570

RAREREFER K&
BYERAARRSHFAL
(BRESE) IAE SR
ERMBAREEZES
A A AN 5 [ B R /5
M REBEES - R
AEREFER REF
3 B R WA AT & o
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Year ended 30th June, 2010 EE—ZE—ZFF A=+ HLFE

13. EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE 13. BRER (FHE)

AEARRRERAARESK
EARF (BER) 1F -

The calculation of the basic earnings (loss) per
share attributable to the equity holders of the

Company is based on the following data:

2010 2009
—E-EF —ETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHER FHIT
Profit (Loss) for the purposes of STEGREARER ()
basic earnings (loss) per share FRELA 2 87 (E518) 47,573 (11,810)
2010 2009
—E-EF —ETNF
No. of shares = No. of shares
REEA & EE
Weighted average number of FTEERERRET (FBB)
ordinary shares for the purposes of FTEE R 2 I T ¥E Rk fn
basic earnings (loss) per share HH (THEMBRE T
(arrived at after eliminating WEBENATZ
the shares in the Company held by IR 18 EETE - XD
Applied Investment which were R-ZZE—FTF_H
cancelled on 12th February, 2010) +—H&FH) 838,888,826 = 838,931,990

Diluted earnings (loss) per share is the same as
basic earnings (loss) per share because the exercise
price of the share options granted is higher than

FREEAEN (BiE) RERE
AN (BR) HFE - BARM
EFRERT < HIERE TR

the average market price of shares for both years. HERRH 2 FHEmE -
14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14. REYHE
HK$'000
T
Fair value NFE
At 1st July, 2008 R-EBEENF+H—H 190,900
Increase in fair values NFE{EE 13,500
At 30th June, 2009 RZZEZNFESNA=TH 204,400
Additions — subsequent expenditure i — HIEEA 2,525
Reclassified from property, WME - BMERRGEHNHIE
plant and equipment 165,711
Net increase in fair values NFERE IR 64,452
At 30th June, 2010 R=B-ZFFXA=1+H 437,088
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Year ended 30th June, 2010 HEE—E—ZFF A=+ HLFE

The fair values of the investment properties of
the Group at 30th June, 2010 have been arrived
at on the basis of valuation as at the end of the
reporting period carried out by BMI Appraisals
Limited (“BMI”), an independent firm of qualified
professional valuers not connected with the
Group. BMI is a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors (“HKIS”) and has appropriate
qualifications and recent experience in the valuation
of similar properties at the relevant locations.
The valuation, which conforms to HKIS Valuation
Standards on Properties, was conducted on an open
market basis by the comparison approach assuming
sale on completion basis with the benefit of vacant
possession or by making reference to comparable
sale evidences as available in the relevant market.

All of the Group’s property interests held under
operating leases to earn rental or for capital
appreciation purposes are measured using the fair
value model and are classified and accounted for as
investment properties.

The carrying values of investment properties held
by the Group comprise:

Held in Hong Kong: REBRE
Long-term leases REAMEAY
Held outside Hong Kong:
Medium-term leases Hr HAAR 49
Freehold KA I

REBRIMEGTHR A

R-ZE-—TFERA=1H K&
BIREME A TFEEDNRES
AEEVEBAEZBIERDE
R {E AP B R A AR AR
ZBETZHEERK - HAEE
REmEs ([FEHEMEE])
KB REABEERMIERE LR
BAUMEX 2EERLR Ml
EBNREFENEMES TIE
(FEREMBGYERMEERE)
e ERRRMSELEELY
FTRABRRETKIHFEEZED =
KRB 2R A R H 5 LR LA A]
BB RS HK o

EBEARKSENBEESNTAEZY
XEamERS WEHIAMERE
RNIBEARFHETAAEMD A
BRI RLEME -

AEERBEZREYNE ZIREE
B

2010 2009
—E2-%% C"TTNHF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEx AT
220,000 170,000
32,288 34,400
184,800 -
437,088 204,400
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Cost
At 1st July, 2008
Additions

Disposals

At 30th June, 2009

Additions

Reclassification to investment
properties

Disposals

At 30th June, 2010

Accumulated depreciation
and impairment

At 1st July, 2008

Provided for the year

Disposals

Impairment

At 30th June, 2009

Provided for the year

Reclassification to investment
properties

Disposals

At 30th June, 2010

Carrying values
At 30th June, 2010

At 30th June, 2009

A
S‘?Z/‘\ﬁtﬂ A

R-Z-BEAA=TH

ERAERAR

REZRNERA=TH
R Bk
BHARERANR

RE

R=F-2ERAZ1A

KA
R=2-BEXA=1H

R-ZENFAA=TH

Year ended 30th June, 2010 HE=—Z—

Ar & B 1 0 5 PR o

BERA=ZTHLEE

15. Y% - - BERRXRE

Properties Furniture,

under Land and Leasehold fixtures and Motor Motor

development buildings improvements  equipment vehicles boats Total
B %8

BRONE  IHRET HENERE &S RE bt BE
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T ThT T TR ThI ThT
167,064 3,145 12,564 5,868 12,712 1,650 203,003
3437 - - - 596 - 4,033
_ - - E - (1,650) (1,650)
170,501 3,145 12,564 5,868 13,308 7 205,386
- - 87 119 - - 206
(170,501) - - - - - (170,501)
- - (287) (4,866) (1,974) - (7127)
- 3,145 12,364 1121 11,334 - 21,964
- 73 9,859 5,435 8,519 688 24574
- 7 2,057 194 2,114 110 4,482
- - - - - (798) (798)
4,790 - - - - - 4,790
4790 80 11,916 5,629 10,633 - 33,048
- 7 367 153 1,132 - 1,659
(4,790) - - - - - (4,790)
= = (287) (4,866) (1,974) - (7127)
- 87 11,996 916 9,791 - 22,790
- 3,058 368 205 1,543 - 5,174
165,711 3,065 648 239 2,675 - 172,338
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16.

82

The carrying values of land and buildings held by
the Group comprise:

Freehold properties held in Canada EMEREEZ
KA R 5
Held in the PRC under long-term TEAR B AR AR 4
land use rights BHZHAEME

The properties under development of the Group
were freehold properties located in Panama which
were reclassified to investment properties during
the year.

The carrying values of property, plant and
equipment of the Group include an aggregate
amount of HK$378,000 (2009: HK$539,000) in
respect of assets held under finance leases.

OTHER ASSETS

Other assets of the Group represent antiques held
for long-term investment purposes. In the opinion
of the directors, the other assets are worth at least
their carrying value at the end of the reporting
period.

16.

REBFA 2 L1 METFTREE
B

2010 2009
—g-¥F —TThA
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH FHT
2,556 2,556

502 509

3,058 3,065

AEEFBRERPZIOERMN
BB ZKARENE » IRA
FEEHNDREREDE -

AEBYFE  BEREREZEK
HEREREREENFEZE
E #8{H #9378,0008 T (Z & F
N 539,000/87T) °

HEE

AEEEMEER/IERPKER
BRAZLE -EFZRR - 17
BRI EMEEZEVHA
BREEC(EE-
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INTEREST IN A JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY

EIEFEE

Share of net assets

As at 30th June, 2010, the Group had interest in
the following jointly controlled entity:

Place of
Form of incorporation/
Name of jointly business operation
controlled entity structures ML/

REEHATER RBERER EXbH

Quorum Island (BVI) Limited Corporation The BVI
("Quorum”) BRAF HBRTEE

Pursuant to an agreement dated 11th August,
2006 (the "Agreement”) entered into by Quorum,
Applied Toys Limited (“Applied Toys”), Applied
Enterprises Limited (“Applied Enterprises”), all
of which were wholly-owned subsidiaries of
the Company, and Interlsle Holdings Limited
("Interlsle”), an independent third party:

(1) Applied Toys and Applied Enterprises agreed
to receive US$30 million (equivalent to
HK$234,000,000) from Quorum for the
redemption of 50% of the issued share
capital of Quorum and the settlement of
all indebtednesses owed by Quorum to the
Group; and

(2) Interlsle agreed to subscribe 50% equity
interest in Quorum for a consideration
of US$21 million (equivalent to
HK$163,800,000) (the "“Outstanding
Consideration”).

shares held

Re IS E MY R
Year ended 30th June, 2010 EE—ZE—ZFF A=+ HLFE

17. R—EHEES QA ER

2010 2009
—g-®F —EINF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#T Tt
27,676 27,368

RZBE—ZFRA=1TH ' &x&
BTy A A AR
Proportion of
issued share
capital held
by the Group
REEEEC  Principal activities
BORALA  TERE
%
ARl

50  Resort and property
development

EEUPESS

B4 Quorum + Applied Toys Limited
([Applied Toysl) * Applied
Enterprises Limited ([ Applied
Enterprises) (2 B A R Al 2 &
BB A Kinterlsle Holdings
Limited ([Interlsle]) (B —®& 3@
FE=FB)R_ZEEEFNA+—
BArgs] 2 ham (3% [ ek l) -

(1) Applied ToysK&Applied
Enterprises[@E Y EXQuorum
30,000,000% 7t (48 & R
234,000,0007T) + LASZATHE
FQuorumpf £ Z50%2
B 17 B 19 & 1B i Quorum
BRAKBEFERAE
N

(2) Interlsle% & 2 B Quorum
Z50%f% # - B R E
21,000,000 7T (#8 & B
163,800,00078 7t) ([ K &
HRE]) -
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M BREM T

Year ended 30th June, 2010 BE —ZT—ZFTF R A=THILFE

The Agreement was completed on 9th April, 2007.
Quorum became a jointly controlled entity of the
Group and a gain on disposal of HK$127,331,000
was recognised in profit or loss. The sole asset of
Quorum upon the date of the completion of the
Agreement is a piece of land held for development
in the BVI together with certain development costs
capitalised (collectively referred to as the “Land”).

Upon completion of the Agreement, Interlsle
paid US$8 million (equivalent to HK$62,400,000)
to Quorum. Quorum then repaid US$8 million
(equivalent to HK$62,400,000) to the Group and
issued a promissory note (the “Promissory Note”)
due for repayment on 9th April, 2008 to the
Group for the remaining balance of US$22 million
(equivalent to HK$171,600,000).

On 16th April, 2008, a memorandum of
amendments to the Agreement was entered
into between Quorum, Applied Toys, Applied
Enterprises and Interlsle to extend the due date of
the Promissory Note to 9th April, 2009. In addition,
Interlsle made a payment of US$2,500,000 to
Quorum, of which US$1,250,000 (equivalent to
HK$9,750,000) relates to the Group’s interest, in
discharging part of the Outstanding Consideration
for the subscription of shares of Quorum. The sum
received was credited to the Group’s interest in
Quorum as compensation to the reduction in the
Group's share of net assets.

On 16th July, 2009, a memorandum of
amendments to the Agreement was entered into
between Quorum, Applied Toys, Applied Enterprises
and Interlsle to further extend the due date of the
Promissory Note to 9th April, 2010.

ZHBER_ZZ=LFMANA
K o FERZ & QuorumE}ﬂ?
AAEEZ —HHEREZEH AT
REBWRIZRE R =R LER ﬁ
& 2 W 25127,331,0005% 7T -
e SEA B 81 © QuorumZ M —
BEERNABREZHEFERY
—iEtHs (% [ L)) o

Z W& 5T K Z & Interlsle
2 ¥ 118,000,000 7T (18 & 1
62,400,000/ 7C) T Quorum °
QuorumB {EE A% [E 8,000,000
% ¢ (M8 % 1#62,400,0005 7T)
N B i #:5822,000,0003 7t (48
£ 171,600,000 7T) 31T —
REHA AT N\FEANA
AR o

RZZEZENFWOA+TRB
Quorum, Applied Toys, Applied
Enterprises MInterlsle3 5] — 13
B = 8% 3 5 A A R R
ZIHBERA-ZZTZENFN
AAMB &% Interlslex 7
2,500,000 JT % TQuorum -
H 711,250,000 7T (K 49 48 & 7
9,750000 7T) B R A& B 2
FEAS #E %5 - H A] LARR BR &F 10
QuorumZE 1T iR 10 2 K B 1 X
B-ZEZERREEARXEEG
Quorum # & 1 k& (1E &R
BEAEBEHFEE 2 EMH) o

RZZTZNAFEA+E - HR
Quorum * Applied Toys, Applied
Enterprises&lnterlslez & 8 1

& B T 85 HE — P IE R %
KmZIZEHHI_f TEMAN
=
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

On 9th June, 2010, Quorum, Applied Toys, Applied
Enterprises and Interlsle agreed to further amend
the terms stated in the Agreement together
with all other memorandum of amendments
to the Agreement previously made and for the
purpose of entering into another memorandum of
amendments to the Agreement dated 9th April,
2010 as follows:

(1) The date on or before which Quorum shall
obtain the initial land and development
loan to be arranged by Interlsle with a
commercial bank or financial institution
(“Loan Date”) in an aggregate principal
amount of at least US$51 million (equivalent
to HK$397,800,000) was changed from 9th
April, 2010 to 9th April, 2011;

(2) The date on which Quorum is obliged to
pay the Promissory Note of US$22 million
(equivalent to HK$171,600,000) was
changed from 9th April, 2010 to 9th April,
2011; and

(3) The date on which Interlsle is obliged to
pay the final instalment of the Outstanding
Consideration in the amount of US$10.5
million (equivalent to HK$81,900,000),
which is the earlier of 9th April, 2010 and
the Loan Date, was changed to the earlier of
9th April, 2011 and the Loan Date.
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E N A B>

Quorum, Applied Toys, Applied
Enterprises XInterlsleR Z# — &
& D% h o B2 2 P A8 HL fth 9 70 3%
1% % 75 il VEHjZ{\KEMﬁUﬁ&E
BEMEAS—HER_FT—ZFY
RANB Z1&aT s ﬁmﬁ‘ﬁﬂ—l— :

(1)

HinterlsleFTZBE 2 W1+
i & % B B X FQuorum
AENMZERZ A ([{E
EH])) ERZ=ZZT—ZTFNH
Hﬂa;ﬁa&ﬁ:?——i
MALB  ¥REBHZ
Al ﬁﬁmA%—%ﬁﬁ
ok B ST R B R & B
> $451,000,0003 7T (K
#7 18 % $2397,800,0007%
JT)

QuorumE T X A& H
# 3 Z $£22,000,0005 7T
(K##EZE 171,600,000
BIL) ZxERBERZ
T-—TFNANEBERA
“E——FWANE &

Interlslesz 15 £ 4% HA i &
88 & {8 /&10,500,0003 T
(K#IHBZ1181,900,00078
o) 2 EIHE - ZB8H
LZZFE-—ZFMANAK
ZEBEHZEREERL
ENA-—E——FMWAA
BREZEEBZREEA
§E o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Re IS E MY R
Year ended 30th June, 2010 HEE—E—ZFF A=+ HLFE

The summarised financial information in respect ERDEFE  AEEEGE—ME
of the Group’s interest in a jointly controlled entity HEEE AT 2 s B REER
which is accounted for using the equity method is BMEaT

set out below:

2010 2009
—E-EF ZZETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TFET
Non-current assets FEREEE 82,646 82,326
Current assets RENEE 41,107 41,116
Current liabilities REIAE 96,077 96,074
Income Wz 311 356
Expenses X (3) (5)
At 30th June, 2010, included in the statement R—ZE—ZTFA=+8"
of financial position of Quorum is the Land with QuorumZ BT AR KR BIET —
a carrying amount of HK$165,292,000 (2009: 8 Bk [ {8 /&165,292,000% 7T
HK$164,653,000), of which HK$82,646,000 (= FEZF L 7F : 164,653,000%
(2009: HK$82,326,000) relates to the Group's JT) 2T B AREE (G
interest. The fair value of the Land as at 30th June, % £382,646,0008 L (ZEZE N
2010, excluding pre-development expenses of F : 82,326,000/ ) ° 7% L i
US$8,000,000 (equivalent to HK$62,400,000), was RZZE—ZEFA=Z+H (T8
approximately HK$250,000,000, which has been 58,000,000 ;L (KM E R
arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out on 62,400,000/87T) < B EAIS L)
that date by BMI. 2 ¥ 18 £250,000,0007% T -
AP MBEFEERRRNZA

fefERTH -
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Notes to the Consolidated Finonciol Statements

In August 2007, a challenge to the Master Plan
2008 was made by the Virgin Islands Environmental
Council (“VIEC"), a non-profit civil environmental
organisation through judicial review by court in
the BVI. On 21st September, 2009, the High Court
of the BVI found against the claimant, VIEC, on
all but one ground of challenge. The court has
upheld the claim that the granting of approval for
construction of the golf course was illegal because
it may adversely affect the Hans Creek fisheries
protected area. The judge specified that there
were two applications submitted by Quorum for
approval (one for the golf course and another for
everything else), but only one approval letter was
received from the Government of the BVI for both
applications. Accordingly, the judge determined
that she would have to quash the entire approval.
However, the judge further identified that the
proposed Master Plan relates to several main
components including a hotel, inner marine,
residential development, commercial development
and infrastructure development which may not
give rise to illegality and therefore has directed the
relevant government authorities to reconsider the
applications and reach a decision in accordance
with the judgement of the court.

On 3rd December, 2009, Quorum filed an appeal to
the Court of Appeal of the BVI against the decision
of the judgement of the High Court of the BVI
dated 21st September, 2009. The appeal hearing
will be held on 20th September, 2010.

On 11th June, 2010, Quorum submitted a revised
Master Plan for the Beef Island Development
to the Government of the Virgin Islands, which
addressed the findings of the High Court of the
BVI with regard to the illegality based on its
ruling that Hans Creek is a fisheries protected
area. The substantial changes made in the revised
Master Plan are expected to ensure that any issue
concerning the adverse impact on Hans Creek as
a fisheries protected area is eliminated, thereby
satisfying the findings and the compliance with the
directive issued by the High Court of the BVI for
reconsideration of the applications as previously
approved.
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Year ended 30th June, 2010 BE —ZE—ZFF R A=1+HILFE

RZEZLENA EEBEX
BE —HMIEEFNLOREREHA
BREESREERZERE
2008 EEE IR B - R
ZERFNLA-+—H(EBEX
HERME)  ARRERABREX
HEeS AtBMEH LB/ E
BRIZHEESRERREABREL
HEBRNZA TEABRIES
IE\ E J:ZH:I:/E /i!g)'t. ﬂ/u%?ﬂ P\E%

—RBRZESREREEEE

BRKIL - BRE—E I o VAT
BERTZSBRKEERETS
/i J?IF%,H\%%HanS Creek’&
&Eﬁﬁiw%ﬁﬁf
QuorumZE?3 m(—BAEREXIK
BRENBEMAEHG ([E2
EE ) fhf - ARBAEE 2z
EEHRA—DXHEM©KDHEH
U EZEBRAZEEER
rEBEEERGUEE - EER
My AEBEMNEERE mESUE
BEEARGBEREITEETR
F2Hans Creek)fERE RT3
ﬁ(?m/‘i‘x /fﬁ/kiﬁﬁﬁmﬁﬁﬁ@
BT ZHfE - WA EEIPFT 2
s - BEEESrIEREE
NEEZERFR R ©

RZZEZTNEF ‘1— A =8
Quorum&vtﬁ’\_ =2 NFNAAZ
+—HEBREZBEESE AR
HORRE FRERBREREER
EFERT 0 EFRERIABER =T —
BENAZTHET

RZZE—ZTFA+—8"
Quorumiz X — 5 E & 5] AYBeef
Island Development® [& T & B
BRHE  HEENXNRBRXR
EmE A 2B B E K EHans
Creekz A ERER M F A 2 2
WIEZIE uTEI’JEtIIKE&m%i‘E
HAF ] A fEHans Creek 17
EERATNEEEe sk ©

mmeERZERE KN RBRX
HEaS AL 2o mBE
BB AR -
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Re IS E MR
Year ended 30th June, 2010 HEE—E—ZFF A=+ HLFE

18.

19.

20.

88

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

mEER 1D

FEmEER D

Current portion
Non-current portion

Prepaid lease payments of the Group represent cost
paid for long-term lease land use rights in the PRC.
The cost is amortised over the leasehold period.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

Equity investments at fair value

Listed in Hong Kong BB LM

The fair values of the listed investments are
determined on the basis of quoted market price at
the end of the reporting period.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

The Group allows credit period ranging within 90
days to its trade customers.

Included in trade and other receivables of the
Group are trade receivables of HK$73,000 (2009:
HK$92,000) and their aging analysis is as follows:

Within 90 days 90K A

18.

19.

WAV ER B 2

20.

AAHEEARN
2010 2009
—g-TF —TINF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR Tz
40 40
1,632 1,672
1,672 1,712

AEEANHEENKBERE M
R Bt i E AR R BEEK
R AR EERRSE -

o>
X H

AHEERE
2010 2009
—g-®F _—TEAF
HK$°000 HK$'000
Tt %
220 127

FHEEREZAFEDERE
EFHAR 2 MISREMETE

B2 REMEWRIR

AEBLRTEESEF2ZER
FE90KA °

AEBCESREMERFKIED
A B 5 E U 3 1E73,0000% 7T
ZEZTNFE 92,0008 ) &

HERATWT -
2010 2009
—g-%F —TThA
HK$'000 HK$'000
FB FiET
73 92
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21.

22,

23.

24,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Year ended 30th June, 2010 HE ==

wr e B RS RS N ot

EERA=ZTHLEE

PROMISSORY NOTE RECEIVABLE FROM A 21. EW—RBHEEEZE 4 A 7 &
JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY =iz
The amount is unsecured, interest-free and ZRETEER . AR KN -FE
repayable on or before 9th April, 2011 (2009: 9th ——FEANLHKZAERZ (=
April, 2010). EFNF ZFE-—FFUAN
H) e
AMOUNT DUE FROM A JOINTLY 22. BEW—RBHEEEEDF 2
CONTROLLED ENTITY g
The amount is unsecured, interest-free and has no IR EEE R REETE
fixed repayment term. BN Ep o
BANK BALANCES AND CASH 23. BITEERRE
Bank balances and cash comprise bank balances WTEFLRSEEAEFRREE
and cash held by the Group that bear interest at M2 IBITHIE N R 2R TEE R
prevailing market interest rates. g o
AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO DIRECTORS 24. EH&/HE??}(I&
The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and have ZRBEAEEEWR . AR NEET
no fixed repayment term. BRHER o
Details of the amount due from a director are as FEW—(EERERNER T ¢
follows:
Maximum
amount
outstanding At 30th June, At 1st July,
during the year 2010 2009
RZFERN R=Z-2ZF R_ZTTIF
Name of director EENR BAZXNEHE ~NA=H4H +A—H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FTET FET
Wong Kar Gee, Mimi FRE 146 146 -

At the end of the reporting period, no provision
had been made for non-repayment of the advances.

RAREHR - TEERTEK
IR 2 EEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Re IS E MY R
Year ended 30th June, 2010 HEE—E—ZFF A=+ HLFE

25. SECURED BANK BORROWINGS 25. DIEMBITHE
2010 2009
—E-EF —ETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Amount payable: BRATNEHES
On demand or within one year BlEAsk —F 57,000 3,000
More than one year but less than iR —F
two years BAORME - 54,000
57,000 57,000
At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s RINMBAR XEBZRTE
bank loans carried variable interest rates at Hong REFHEBRITREZFE M
Kong Inter-bank Offer Rate plus 0.7% (2009: same) FHME0T7% (= g%’\;ﬁ F A
per annum. The effective interest rates during the AKE)  REEREEFMEREG
year ranged from 0.74% to 0.88% (2009: 0.79% 0.74%%£0.88% (= FEZF L F .
to 4.65%) per annum. 0.79% 24.65%) °
26. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 26. REMEIEE

Present value of

Minimum lease minimum lease
payments payments
8RR SEREN BRERNNRBRAE
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-BF —TTNF —F-FTF —TTNF

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TExT TAT TERT THAT

Amounts payable: RIATEHER
Within one year —FR 22 260 21 250
More than one year i —F

but less than two years BLORRE - 22 - 21

22 282 21 271

Less: Future finance charges & : 55k g & & A 1) (11)
Present value of finance MAEE 2 RE

lease obligations 21 271
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27.
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Notes to the Consolidated Finonciol Statements

Year ended 30th June, 2010 HE=—Z—

The obligations under finance leases of the Group
are secured by the lessor’s charge over the leased
assets.

The lease term ranged from one to two years.
For the year ended 30th June, 2010, the average
effective borrowing rate was 3.66% (2009: 4.36%)
per annum. Interest rates were fixed at the contract
date. All leases are on a fixed repayment basis.

SHARE CAPITAL

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each

Authorised: ERE
At 1st July, 2008, 30th June, RZZBENF+A—H -
2009 and 30th June, 2010 “EENFRAZTER
—E-TF HA=TH
Issued and fully paid: BETRAR
At 1st July, 2008 RZZEZEN\F+A—H
Cancellation upon repurchase [ (B o 8

of own shares

At 30th June, 2009

Cancellation upon repurchase B B 1 = 85 2 R R R £
of treasury shares
At 30th June, 2010 R-B-BFXA=1H

On 12th February, 2010, the Company repurchased
and cancelled 34,329,000 treasury shares held by
Applied Investment.

During the year ended 30th June, 2009, the
Company repurchased on the Stock Exchange
a total of 220,000 shares of HK$0.01 each of
the Company at an aggregate consideration of
HK$67,000, all of which were cancelled in that
year.

27.

EEREREE0.0ET

\—77j-|.:¢/\ﬂ —I_E

Ar & B 1 0 5 PR o

BERA=ZTHLEE

AEEZBERNAEEKELD
BEARTHOA -

BHEPRR —E_FALE - HE
—T-TFEXA=THIFEE
FHEREEF X B3.66%
—ETANF 4.36%) > NRE
AHRET - IERNYAEE
TEIEFNER o

g A
Number of

ordinary shares HK$'000
ZRREA TR
6,000,000,000 60,000
873,437,826 8,734
(220,000) (2)
873,217,826 8,732
(34,329,000) (343)
838,888,826 8,389
BA —ZEF_A+_-H K

NI Eﬁ [ & & $534,329,0006
Applied Investmenti 5 K & 1¥
& n o

RZEZNEFESA=ZTRHEE
N ARRBEBEERZMERDA
EJrH&o.oﬁ%ﬁZZZO,ooo%E

R EAR67,0008 T ZBRHE
\uxirufﬂ%
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M BREM T

Year ended 30th June, 2010 i E =%

The nominal value of cancelled shares was credited
to the capital redemption reserve and the aggregate
consideration was charged to the retained profits
of the Company.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Company adopted a share option scheme on
16th September, 2002 (the “Scheme”) for the
primary purpose of providing incentives to directors
and eligible employees. The Scheme will expire
on 15th September, 2012. Under the Scheme,
the board of directors of the Company may grant
options to any employees, including executive
directors, or consultants of the Company and/
or its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the
Company.

The total number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Scheme is not
permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue at the date of adoption of the
Scheme (“Scheme Mandate Limited”) which was
94,108,074 shares. On 24th November, 2009, it
was resolved in the 2009 Annual General Meeting
that the Scheme Mandate Limited was refreshed
to 87,321,782 shares. Unless approved by the
shareholders of the Company, the number of shares
in respect of which options may be granted to any
individual is not permitted to exceed the higher of
1% of the number of shares issued and issuable
under the Scheme or any other limit as may be
permitted under the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange.

Options granted must be taken up within 30 days
of the date of grant, upon payment of HK$1 by
the grantee on each acceptance of grant. Options
may be exercised at any time from the date of
grant to the 10th anniversary of the date of grant.
In each grant of options, the board of directors of
the Company may at their discretion to determine
the specific exercise period. The exercise price is
determined by the directors of the Company, and
will be the highest of (i) the closing price of the
Company’s share on the date of grant; (ii) the
average closing price of the Company’s shares for
the five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant, and (iii) the nominal value of the
Company’s shares.

—SEAXA=TALFRE

28.

ZAEENREEELREN
BEARERIFERE &ﬁi\,ﬁ@ﬁf“i%&z
BREAER A R A A

URADER 2K

RZFF_FAA+AE &
AR B IR & ( &K [RF
) BEREERAERE
BRI - ZAtEIRN =T —
“FNAATRBER - REZE
g ARBEFGARAARER
/ HEMBRARZEE (BFEH
TES) ABERRLARBEAR
Al 2 R ARHE o

%D)%

BIEZTEI RN cBRER D
M2 BRMHEE - T15BBRN
ZAtEEH A AR B EITRM
Z10% ([T 8 X ER ] B
94,108,074k - E—_ZTZT NF+
—A-+tWE R-ZEZNEHF
FREANSZAZLTEI T ERER
¥ ¥ 587,321,782 - Br IE B
Bl AR R AL & - Al R FEAAE
%AiZ%k%%ﬁ&zkf%
TESHBBREZTE BB
&T%”Z%ﬁ%ﬁZ%ﬁ@
BXSFES FMBAMAGFZ
EREMEE (AR EEE) -

%szﬁﬁﬂﬂééb/,\ﬁhﬂj Spifid
A30H M  REBREARE
4&%%/,\7%1;%;\;%*%%&1#1
BT BRETHRLAES
B BHIE10BF (- HIERER 1T
- MIRH AR Exgn

RISEERETEM - 1TEER
ARAESEE @ WHEFROER
B BARR RO 2 W E - (i)
ERRLBHAEERAARR
At 2 SFWTE ¢ KA

AfkfD 2 EHE (AR S ERLE)
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Year ended 30th June, 2010 BE —ZE—ZFF A A=1+HILFE

The directors and employees of the Company and KRR RERBRRICEEME
its subsidiaries are entitled to participate in the B2 HE AR A 28R
Scheme. At 30th June, 2010, the total number of e R=—E—ZFFA=1+H"
shares available for issue under the Scheme was RIE BT 2R A 31T AR
87,321,782 shares, including options of 44,430,000 2 8L B 587,321,782/ B 1&
shares that have been granted but not yet lapsed or 44,430,000/ 17 2 BER BB KR
exercised, which represented approximately 10.4% B ITERERE - EARAA
of the Company’s issued share capital. BB BTN %910.4% °

The following table discloses movements of the REBEE_Z—ZEFA=F+AHIL
share options of the Company during the year FE - ARAABRENZEDF1S
ended 30th June, 2010. (N

Granted during

Date of share the year and

options Outstanding  outstanding at  Exercise

Name of directors granted Exercisable period at 1.7.2009 30.6.2010 price
REERTR

R=BELE  R-B-%F
& g ABZtH

BEpE BRERTHH MTREEH KITE WA TEE
HKS
ik

Hung Kin Sang, Raymond 21.10.2009 21.10.2009 to 20.10.2014 - 22,700,000 0.29

HEE (Note 1) “EENETAZT-RE

“TENF ZE-EE+AZTH

FA=—H

(M)
Wong Kar Gee, Mimi 21.10.2009 21.10.2009 to 20.10.2014 - 13,330,000 0.29
THH (Note 1) “ETNETAZT-BZ

ZEENE ZE-WETAZTH

+A=+-AH

(B5E1)
Hung Kai Mau, Marcus 21.10.2009 21.10.2009 to0 20.10.2014 - 8,400,000 0.29
s i (Note 1) “EEAFTA-t-BZ

ZZINF ZE-METAZTH

+H=1—H

(K1)
Total £5f - 44,430,000
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Year ended 30th June, 2010 BE —ZT—ZFF A=THILFE

(1) The options were proposed and granted by
the board of directors of the Company on 21st
October, 2009 which were subject to the approval
by shareholders. The approval was subsequently
obtained on 24th November, 2009 which is the
grant date as defined in accordance with HKFRS 2.

(2) The exercise period of the share options of
the Company granted to Mr. Hung Kin Sang,
Raymond, Ms. Wong Kar Gee, Mimi and Mr. Hung
Kai Mau, Marcus are five years from the date of
grant. There is no minimum vesting period for the
share options granted.

(3) The closing price of the shares of the Company
immediately before the date on which the options
were granted was HK$0.29.

(4) The fair values of the share options of the
Company were calculated using the Black-Scholes
model. The valuation of fair value determination
as at the grant date was carried out by
management. The inputs into the model were as

follows:

Closing share price at grant date HK$0.31
Exercise price HK$0.29
Expected volatility 76.0%
Risk-free interest rate 1.26%
Expected dividend yield Nil

The risk-free interest rate was based on the yield of
the government bonds issued by the Government
of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region.
Expected volatility was determined by using the
historical volatility of the Company’s share prices
in the prior year. Any changes in the subjective
assumptions of the inputs could materially affect
the option value estimated.

RZZBEZNF+AZ+—H K
@ﬂ?%é*&EE§$AF%H§H£
¥ HERREREX - B &
—EEAFT A THBERS
BOEWIR BB B G RE LR E
25RIERIZ T HER -

ARBREFHREESLLE  TRHE
2t RO S A B 2 AT AT
EHRABE T A HEFTAE

ZERTRZBRELAREEE

BT ERER 2RI AR R RO
M{ER0.298TT °

AR RIERE 2 A FETERS
Hrw — AT R HT IR E (B ALGH
H -ZRETRBZATFERE
BREGHE W AZRRENER
T

o

B B H T E 0.317% 7T
11158 0.29% 7T
TE B 8 76.0%

[ B 1| 2 1.26%
TEHAK B % i

?ﬁiﬁkﬁﬁi"@%ﬁ“ﬂﬂé‘*ﬁﬂﬁﬂz
[&8 DR A 2% ZLBZH?LJ%ZHSZ/\ g
TE,HH&VPEEEZK BEFERE
E’]J_\ﬁ"i/)i‘iﬂlaaﬁﬁ/krﬁ o IfE AE
PO EBRRNEE G R H R
BRZAFTEREATE -
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Year ended 30th June, 2010 BE —ZE—ZFF R A=1+HILFE

The following table discloses movements of the AT RBEERAANFTR -_ZEE A,
share options of the Company during the year FRAA=ZTHLEFEZRERZ
ended 30th June, 2009. =i 5)
Date of share Outstanding Cancelled Expired  Outstanding
options at during during at Exercise
Name of directors  granted Exercisable period 1.7.2008 the year the year 30.6.2009  price
RZBRNE R-2-2%
BRER tA-H AB=TR
ESfg FEH AT EHE ATE AFEERE AEESHR A TRE
HK$
Hung Kin Sang, 25.4.2006 25.4.2006 to 24.4.2011 45,611,141 (45,611,141) ! = 0.54
Raymond ZE55F CEREMACTRAZ
g MAZ+HA =Z--F@A=1MA
Hung Kai Mau, 25.4.2006 25.4.2006 to 24.4.2009 1,500,000 = (1,500,000) = 0.54
Marcus SN ZELEMAZTRAE
LA MAZthA Z—EZNEMA-THA
25.4.2006 24.4.2007 to 24.4.2009 1,500,000 = (1,500,000) = 0.54

“EEX “ELLENA-TNEZE
MA-+hH —EZH4NA-+MA

Total &5t 48,611,141 (45,611,141)  (3,000,000) -

The Group recognised share-based payments of AEEBAR T — 7?\ FRA
HK$5,332,000 as an expense for the year ended STHELEFEE(ZFEFNEF
30th June, 2010 (2009: Nil) in relation to the share ) BEBARRRIRTARAIE
options granted by the Company to the Company’s EMEBRENRG BERNK
directors. The share-based payments were also 5,332,000/ 7T A& X HH o 7 A8
shown as part of the directors’ emoluments in note BwENT12(a) » ZAKRND /E
12(a) to these financial statements. e 8 15 SRR B B0 10 EE 55 2 B

@ o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Re IS E MR
Year ended 30th June, 2010 HEE—E—ZFF A=+ HLFE

29.

30.

96

TREASURY SHARES 29. EEFEKRH®
Number of
treasury shares HK$'000
EFRGOEE TFET
At 1st July, 2008, and RZZEZENFELA—BR
30th June, 2009 —ETZANFSNA=TH 34,329,000 8,911
Cancelled during the year RARFEE T (34,329,000) (8,911)

At 30th June, 2010

Treasury shares represented ordinary shares of
the Company held by Applied Investment before
Applied Investment became a subsidiary of the
Company in 1995 which were held for long-term
purpose and cancelled during the year.

DEFERRED TAXATION

At 30th June, 2010, the Group had unused tax
losses of HK$212,328,000 (2009: HK$212,328,000)
available for offset against future profits. No
deferred tax asset in respect of such tax losses has
been recognised due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams. The tax losses may be carried
forward indefinitely.

Deferred tax expenses and liabilities of
HK$4,269,000 (2009: Nil) arising from fair value
adjustments of investment properties have been
charged to profit or loss of the Group for the
year ended 30th June, 2010 and recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position
respectively.

30.

EFEOEENRER-—NATA
FRASARBINB AR ZARE
ZARRRIEBE - IR R
BERAFEEDEH

IEFERIE

R—ZZE—ZFTFA=Z+8"
NEBABKREHBIEEIRE
212,328,0008 7T (ZZFEZENF -
212,328,000/ ir) ] i 34 #& R
Al o R BRLEHIBEE T AR
R A REN T B AR
% o BIIAE B A R BRAEEE -

HEERIE X & & 84,269,000
BT (2009 : ) 2 EERARE
BEMEATEZAZREHE S IZE
SRAEENR-_ZT—TFE A=
THIEFEZBEP RERNE
B BMRRAERP -
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31.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 31.

The Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect
of rented premises which fall due as follows:

Within one year —F R
In the second to fifth year inclusive 8 — S OERGE
(BEEEMSE)

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable
by the Group for certain of its office. The lease
term is ranging from 2 to 5 years (2009: 2 to 5
years). Rentals are fixed over the lease period
and no arrangements have been entered into for
contingent rental payments.
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Re IS E MY R
Year ended 30th June, 2010 EE—ZE—ZFF A=+ HLFE

REBNRE
REBREEAA
RIVBAR - AEERBEEDE

ZAT AR EROBENZ R
KEEHESAT

2010 2009
—g-¥F —BINF
HK$'000 HK$’000
F# Fitt
1,813 2,883
1,373 3,186
3,186 6,069

REMONRIEARESETET
BYEENZES - HAOMEHH
MEERF (ZFENF - HF
FhF) HEREHHARE/E
i HIE KA S (FRETL 2
BE o
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No’res to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RB B REMEE

Year ended 30th June, 2010 BE —ZT—ZFTF R A=THILFE

32. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 32. BREHAOLTHE
The Group as lessor AEBHEHBEA
At the end of the reporting period, the Group RIERER - NREBEBREKLEY
had contracted with tenants for future minimum EEWRB S IR ET A EEK
lease payments, which represent rentals receivable SO xERSWALT :

by the Group for its investment properties, under
non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as

follows:
2010 2009
—E-FF _ZINF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHTT
Within one year — %R 3,162 4,065
In the second to fifth year inclusive CEa 2 En R v
(BEERWE) 5,826 6,944
Over five years BiBERF 1,605 1,948
10,593 12,957
The properties held have committed tenants with EEHNMEBE2RAEYME (BEME
rental fixed for term ranging from 2 to 13 years ®) CEEHABMEET=F
(2009: 2 to 14 years). (ZZFZNF : FEZFPIFE) o
33. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 33. BEXRAEE
2010 2009
—EB-BF _TThF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHTT
Capital expenditure in respect of the BREREGE
acquisition of investment properties Eﬁ?ﬁ%#&%ﬁéﬁz
and property, plant and equipment EBEYE  HWE
contracted for but not provided for in T 7 BANEYE
the consolidated financial statements
— the Group — REE 19,203 19,203
— share of a jointly controlled entity — B —EERES A 31,288 31,288
50,491 50,491
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34,

35.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the
Group pledged investment properties with a
carrying amount of HK$220,000,000 (2009:
HK$170,000,000) to banks to secure general

banking facilities granted to the Group.
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35.
In addition to the transactions/information
disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial
statements, during the year, the Group had the
following transactions with related parties:
(a) Transaction
During the year ended 30th June, 2010, the
Group had rental income of approximately
HK$140,000 (2009: Nil) receivable from
Ms. Wong Kar Gee, Mimi, a director of the
Company.
(b) Remuneration to key management
personnel
The remuneration of members of key
management, other than directors as
disclosed in note 12 to these financial
statements was as follows:
Salaries and other benefits Fre R EmEF

Discretionary bonus
Retirement benefit scheme contributions

The remuneration of directors and other
key management personnel is determined
by the remuneration committee of the
Company having regard to the performance
of individuals and market trends.

By IS TEAL
BRI HR

Re IS E MY R
Year ended 30th June, 2010 EE—ZE—ZFF A=+ HLFE

34. BEEHEA

RIREAR - AEBEEFIELED
% B8R ™ {8220,000,000/% JT (=
FE 1, & : 170,000,000/% )
EAAEEER —RIRITEERE
P

EBEALTHE

RTEAGAMBREEHEZ
X5/ BMH RAFER - K
SEHEFEALE NMIRS :

(a)

(b)

Z

xt

R-ZE—FTFA=1H
tFE AEBEHRES
FTREZTEK 2B K
A#)5140,0008 7T (==&

TNE - fE) o
FEEBAEMS
BTEMEFREE 2SS
I REENZEIEER
AEMESHT :
2010 2009
—B-BF "ZTTNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
581 558
47 i
12 e
640 570

ARFlzFMEESSR
FEMALZRR LTS
BRAMETES KEME
EEEABZME -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Re IS E MR
Year ended 30th June, 2010 HEE—E—ZFF NA=THLFE

36.

100

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY

Non-current assets
Interest in subsidiaries

Current assets
Other receivables
Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities

Other payables

Amounts due to directors
Amount due to a subsidiary

Bank overdrafts

Net current liabilities

NET ASSETS

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Share premium and reserves

TOTAL EQUITY

FRBEE
L= UNSIE 2

hRBEE
Hofth & W 0 IH
RITEFNRE

RBAE

H o FE A 3R

FENEERIA
RL=PNCP
e RIA
RITIEX

ERBAME
BEE

XK f#fE

(L@
BeirimEREES
RS

36. A BEHBEMRRT
2010 2009
—E-ZF —EENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TET
443,262 441,185
248 484
2,296 30
2,544 514
707 446
10,401 1,409
229,107 222,169
- 959
240,215 224,983
(237,671) (224,469)
205,591 216,716
8,389 8,732
Note (a) Fff&E (a) 197,202 207,984
205,591 216,716
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Notes to the Consolidated Finonciol Statements

Note:

(a)

Year ended 30th June, 2010 HZ2 - —

An & B T 0 5 PR o

BERNA=THLFE

Pt aE
Share premium and reserves (@) RO REREES
Share Capital
Shares options  redemption Capital ~ Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total
ROEE  BRERG EARERE E5GfE B Az
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fhr T i TEr TEL Thn
At 1st July, 2008 R-FENFtA-A 445 8,486 11,575 204,610 (1,604) 223,512
Total comprehensive loss for the year X 2ESE4E = = = = (15,463) (15,463)
Repurchase of own shares EiER G - - 2 - (67) (65)
Transfer to retained profits on expiry/ EETR#E2I4 / BL R
cancellation of share options ZREE - (8,486) - - 8,486 -
At 30th June, 2009 RZTENEAA=TA 445 & 11,577 204,610 (8,648) 207,984
Total comprehensive loss for the year EEZ2AEREE - - - - (7,546) (7,546)
Repurchase of own shares BE:00) - - 38 - (8911) (8,568)
Equity-settled share-based payments MR35 (518 - 5332 - - - 5,332
At 30th June, 2010 R-2-BEXA=1H 445 5332 11,920 204,610 (25.105) 197,202

The capital reserve of the Company represents
contributed surplus arising from the cancellation
of share premium account of the Company
pursuant to a special resolution passed by
the Company on 22nd February, 1999. Under
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), contributed surplus is distributable to
shareholders, subject to the condition that the
Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or
make a distribution out of contributed surplus, if
there are reasonable grounds for believing that:

(i) the Company is, or would after the
payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as
they become due; or

(ii) the realisable value of the Company’s
assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued
share capital and share premium account.
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ANE-ZA-—t+-_BBEBz— =&
5 Bl 2R DA RE S AR A AR5 0
BEMELNRHBER - BIEA
RIE1981F R 7]k (KB

BEREBAA] 0K T BCR - M
ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁTﬂ\ﬂ'%$
RAPBERI TS - A

RBBERETOIR

(1) AR BIEAE R TR
BESR A BRI B 28
&%

) RRFBEZ JEBREE
RELE SR EaERE
17 B A Ko B A0 4 1B 2 48
e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Re IS E MR
Year ended 30th June, 2010 HEE—E—ZFF A=+ HLFE

Subject to the conditions mentioned in the EE LR ZBGHT AR
foregoing paragraph, the Company had the AR REAAR AT it 5k T AR 3R 2
following reserves available for distribution to REAT

shareholders at the end of the reporting period:

2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZEENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Capital reserve N 204,610 204,610
Accumulated losses 2BEE (25,105) (8,648)
179,505 195,962
37. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 37. Bﬁ%i\\ﬁjﬁ%
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 30th FEMBRAARZZE—FTF A
June, 2010 are as follows: =THZFBET :
Proportion of
Place of Nominal value issued share
incorporation or of issued and capital/registered
establishment/ paid up share capital/ capital held
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital by the Company Principal activities
WEARER AL, BRARBRRE/ KARBRECRORA/ TEEE
¥/ REny EMEREE EMEARLLA
Directly — Indirectly
B 3
Applied Electronics Bahamas/PRC Ordinary US$5,000 = 100%  Property holding
(Bahamas) Limited BREHE / Redeemable preference BENE
HE US$300
LEMR5,000% T
A REEER300%KT
Applied Electronics Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$86,000,000 100% - Investment holding
ENETARAA 0 £ 1%86,000,0004 RERR
Applied Enterprises Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000 = 100%  Investment holding
R LER1,000ET RERR
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Notes to the Consolidated Finonciol Statements

Name of subsidiary

WELRAR

Applied Hong Kong
Properties Limited

Applied Investment (Asia) Limited

ENRARRERDA]

AppliedLand Limited

ENelgnRERAR

Applied Mission Limited

Applied Secretaries Management

Limited

Applied Toys Limited

Beachside Investments Limited

Data Pen Limited
EHETEBRAT

Year ended 30th June, 2010 HE-Z—

Place of Nominal value
incorporation or of issued and
establishment/ paid up share capital/
operation registered capital
B BRIRBERE/
g% /e EMEREE
Hong Kong Ordinary HK$500,000
&R LMR500,000% T
Hong Kong Ordinary HK$574,630,911
&R L@MR574,630,911%T
Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2
& LRR2ET
Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000
BB Lk10,000%7
Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2
&R LEkET
Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2
B LERET
BVI/Canada Ordinary US$1
ERREREE/ LRRIET
JIEYN
Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2
& LRR2BT
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& MRS M

EERA=ZTHLEE

Proportion of
issued share
capital/registered

capital held
by the Company Principal activities
ARARERRARA/ FTEE
EERLLP
Directly  Indirectly
Bk ik
- 100%  Property, plant and
equipment holding
BENE  BEREE
100% - Investment holding
REBR
100% - Property, plant and
equipment holding
and investment holding
BENE - BERRE
REERR
- 100%  Property, plant and
equipment holding
BENE  WERRE
100% - Providing administrative
and secretarial services
RETTH RWE RS
= 100%  Property, plant and

equipment holding
RENR  BERR

100%  Property, plant and
equipment holding
FRNE  BERR

100%  Property, plant and
equipment holding

RFENX - BERRE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Re IS E MR
Year ended 30th June, 2010 HEE—E—ZFF A=+ HLFE

Place of
incorporation or

Nominal value
of issued and

establishment/ paid up share capital/

Name of subsidiary operation registered capital
WEARERE BPVE] BRIRBERE/
g%/ mEny EMEREE

Quorum Electronics (Shenzhen) PRC Registered capital
Company Limited (Note) H HK$10,000,000
BRSRBLE (RY) BRAF 1 &7810,000,00078 7T
Playa Grande Development Panama Ordinary US$200
Holdings Inc. BE LER200%T
Playa Grande Hot Spring Panama Ordinary US$200
Development Holdings, Inc. B LER200ET
Severn Villa Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$7,545,000
& Li#fk7,545,000% T

Note: Quorum Electronics (Shenzhen) Company Limited

is a wholly foreign owned enterprise established

in the PRC.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities

outstanding at the end of the year, or at any time

during the year.

The above list includes the subsidiaries of the
Company which, in the opinion of the directors,
principally affected the results of the year or assets
and liabilities of the Group. To give details of all
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

Proportion of
issued share
capital/registered

capital held
by the Company Principal activities
ARARERRARA/ ZTEE
EExLLpl
Directly Indirectly
Bk ik
- 100%  Property holding
BENE
- 100%  Resort and property
development
ERMRDZER
= 100%  Resort and property
development
ERNRDELR
= 100%  Property holding
BENR

fizE: BEZREEE CRID BERA
ARERBKIZIZ 2 EINEHER
BE -

WA O R AE (R
SRE-A0)- PNGICERC LI E
B EHES -

EIMBRARRESERREAE
BEEXEREERBBEATE
FEIZNA - BEERG LA
BEMMBARZFBRERRE
BRILK °

Applied Development Holdings Limited B HhZ %&£ @GR AT ¢ Annual Report 2010 F 3§



38.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

With effective from 1st December, 2000, the Group
has joined a mandatory provident fund scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) for all qualifying employees.
The MPF Scheme is registered with the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme Authority under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in funds under the control of
an independent trustee. Under the rules of the MPF
Scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the MPF Scheme
at rates specified in the rules. The only obligation
of the Group with respect to the MPF Scheme is to
make the required contributions under the scheme.
No forfeited contribution is available to reduce the
contributions payable in future years.

The retirement benefits cost of the MPF Scheme
charged to profit or loss, as set out in note 10 to
these financial statements, represents contributions
payable to the fund by the Group at rates specified
in the rules of the MPF Scheme.

38.

Re IS E MY R
Year ended 30th June, 2010 EE—ZE—ZFF A=+ HLFE

RIRERETE

TEETFT_A—HE &
SEERFAREMBAEREER N
ARl RTES TS ([RFES AT
2l1) - R EITIRE RS 1E
REZFF RPN B HIE TR
TR BREM - BB ElcEE
DEANEEZEENSH BBV
XREATEZESHEHR - RIER
Btz BEREREES
AR E 2 LR AR A AT
SR - AERBRBIEEETE 2
E—BEERREEELREZ
R - SR D NE 2 AR A B 1E
R AR SR ERF 2 K

sRIE R E 8 2 BRI BAAAR R
A7 A W e 2 I0 BRI 5F 51 10 MY
10 BIAKEZRES SR A
HEE 2 LR A E S S -
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Financial Summary

MGHE

RESULTS

Continuing operations
Turnover

Profit (Loss) before taxation
Tax credit (charge)

Profit (Loss) for the year from
continuing operations

Discontinued operations
Loss for the year
from discontinued operations

Profit (Loss) for the year

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company
Minority interests

BREEXY
ERE

BB (BR)
BRRER(XH)

TRIEERT

FRET (BR)

BRIEXK
BERLEXBEFR
BE

FRET (B1R)
FEfh -

ARAIBERAA

DEBRR L

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

TOTAL ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES

EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO
EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY

MINORITY INTERESTS

106

BERE

AfReE

RRRBERAA
T

DBBRER

ES

Year ended 30th June,
BERAZTHLEE

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
—TERF  —ETLF  —EFTN\F —ETNF ZE-Bf
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET THT AT TET TER
8,526 6,785 5,876 5,058 4,847
13,695 111,269 17,472 (11,810) 51,868
(786) 59 432 - (4,295)
12,909 111,328 17,904 (11,810) 47,573
(2,957) (2,013) (81) - -
9,952 109,315 17,823 (11,810) 47,573
10,757 110,173 17,823 (11,810) 47,573
(805) (858) = - -
9,952 109,315 17,823 (11,810) 47,573
EEREE

At 30th June,

WAA=1H
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
“EENE CFECE CFE\E CTEAF CE-%F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT TEL THL TEL TER
498,759 672,230 592,197 597,480 667,725
(59,240) (137,606) (44,958) (62,733) (79,980)
439,519 534,624 547,239 534,747 587,745
438,661 534,624 547,239 534,747 587,745
858 - - - -
439,519 534,624 547,239 534,747 587,745
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Particulars of Major Properties

Particulars of investment properties held by the Group at

30th June, 2010 are as follows:

Name/location

1Y 1
Hong Kong

Flat A on 1st Floor,

Flat B on 1st Floor, 2nd Floor,
3rd Floor, the roof and carpark
1,2,3,4,5and 7 Severn Villa,
3 Severn Road, The Peak,
Hong Kong

The People’s Republic of China
(excluding Hong Kong)

Part of Level 1 &

whole floor of Level 2,
No. 42, Zhan Qian Road,
Zi Pian B Qu,
Guangdong Province

A site at Ping Hu Town,
Baoan County, Shenzhen,
Guangdong Province

Applied Development Holdings Limited B hiZ %&£ MAR A 7 » Annual Report 2010 43}

58
)
TR BB 355

TEERIE1BAE
112 - 218 - 3#8B= -

FERIFENT] 23

4~ 5K75%

PEARANE
(TREEHE)

ERE

AR

BRI #5425
—BHHR_EEE

fI 7 ERAE
RYIE 22 F%
A AR

AEBR_ZT-FTFXA=1THKHA

EEL

ZEEMEFBHINMT

Lease expiry

B E w10

2070
—TLTHF

2042

—EN=F

2041
—E—4F

=
H

Effective

Type % held
EREER

=il Bk
R 100

C 100

C 100
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Particulars of Major Properties
T By RS

Particulars of properties held for development (as AEBR-_Z-ZTFA=THIHE
investment properties) by the Group at 30th June, 2010 R (KIKEYWSE) 2WEF S W

are as follows: N
Lease Gross  Effective Stage of Anticipated
Name/location expiry Type site area % held  completion completion
ik At EREE
#8/t% B 0 bl HfE BAt BIKE BRI
Panama B2E
Lots 1807, 4920, 4921, 4923, Freehold R/C 53.3 million 100 Under N/A
4924, 4935, 4936, 4942, KA ERE Sq. ft development RiEH
4943, 4944, 4945, 6921, 53,300,000 BESH
20435, 33248, 35039, FAR

41583, 41619 together with
all beach front property
known as Playa Grande in
Boca Chica, District of

San Lorenzo, Province

of Chiriqui, Panama

Type of properties: R - residential MEER R-E%
C - commercial C-AR
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